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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
NOTICE is hereby given that the 25th Annual General Meeting of the Members of KMS Medisurgi 
Limited will be held on Saturday, September 30, 2023 at 3.00 p.m. at its Registered Office situated at 
297/301 May Building, Gr. Floor Marine lines(East), Princess Street, Mumbai-400002 to transact the 
following business. 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 
1. Adoption of Financial Statement 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2023 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors 
thereon. 
 

2. Declaration of Dividend 
To declare a final dividend of ₹ 0.05 (0.5%) per equity share for the Financial Year ended 
March31, 2023. 
 

3. Re- appointment of Mr. Rohan Devang Kanakia (DIN: 09220915) as a Director liable to 
retire by rotation 
To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rohan Devang Kanakia (DIN: 09220915), who retires by 
rotation and being eligible offers himself for reappointment. 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 
4. To Ratify/Approve the Related Party Transaction of the Company for FY 2023-24: 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution:  
 
“Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and all other applicable provisions, if 
any of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) 
Rules, 2014 (as amended from time to time), the approval / ratification of the members of the 
Company, be hereby, accorded to all the transactions entered or to be entered by the Company 
with Related Parties in the financial year 2023-24, whether by way of continuation / extension / 
renewal / modification of earlier arrangements / transactions or otherwise, and entering into 
further contracts / arrangements / transactions with ‘Related Parties’ as defined under Section 
2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013, exceeding the prescribed limits of Rule 15(3) of Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 during the FY 2023-24 as set out in the 
Explanatory Statement.” 
 
Resolved further that the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby, authorized to 
do, all such acts, matters, deeds and things, settle any queries / delegate such authority as may be 
deemed necessary and execute such addendum contracts / arrangements / transactions as may be 
considered necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution and for matters 
connected herewith or incidental there to in the best interest of the Company.” 
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5. To appoint Statutory Auditor to fill Casual Vacancy 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution:  
 
“Resolved that subject to the provisions of Section 139, 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, 
M/s. H.H Dedhia & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 148213W), be 
and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company, to fill the casual vacancy caused 
by the resignation of M/s. Dalal Doctor & Associate, Chartered Accountants. 
 
Resolved further that M/s. H.H Dedhia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, be and are 
hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold the office from August 23, 2023, 
until the conclusion of 25th Annual General Meeting of the Company, at such remuneration plus 
applicable taxes, and out of pocket expenses, as may be determined and recommended by the 
Audit Committee in consultation with the Auditors and duly approved by the Board of Directors 
of the Company.” 
 

6. Appointment of Statutory Auditor for five years 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution:  
 
“Resolved that subject to the provisions of Section 139, 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2019 and other applicable provisions, if any, 
M/s. H.H Dedhia & Associates, Chartered Accountants(Firm Registration No. 148213W), be and 
are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the Company for a tenure of five years from the 
conclusion of 25th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 30th Annual General 
meeting of the Company at such remuneration plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses, 
as may be determined and recommended by the Audit Committee in consultation with the 
Auditors and duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. 
 
Resolved further that any Director of the Company be are hereby severally authorized to do all 
such acts, deeds and things to give effect to this resolution.” 
 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For KMS Medisurgi Limited 

 
Sd/- 

Sunny Gupta 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

Membership no. ACS 42843 
Date: 31.08.2023 
Place: Mumbai 
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NOTES:  

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED 
TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF 
AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.  
 
Pursuant to the provisions of section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act proxy on 
behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in aggregate not more than ten percent of 
the total share capital of the Company. Member holding more than ten percent of the total Share 
Capital of the Company may appoint a single person as proxy, who shall not act as a proxy for 
any other Member.  
The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective should be returned to the Registered Office of the 
Company, duly completed signed and stamped not less than FORTY–EIGHT HOURS before the 
commencement of the.  
Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies, etc. must be supported by appropriate 
resolution/authority, as applicable, issued by the member organization. A Proxy form is sent 
herewith. 
 

2. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), in 
respect of the Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting is annexed hereto. 

3. The AGM Notice is being sent to the shareholders of the Company whose names appear on 
the Register of Members/List of Beneficial Owners as received from the Depositories as on 
Friday, September 01, 2023. 
 

4. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will be closed from Saturday, 24thSeptember, 
2023 to Saturday, 30th September, 2023 (both days inclusive). 

 
5. The voting right of all shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid up equity share 

capital of the company as on the cut-off date i.e. Saturday, September 23, 2023. 
 

6. Members are requested to send all communications relating to shares to our Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agent (R & T Agent) at the following address: KFin Technologies Ltd., Karvy Selenium 
Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad, Karnataka - 
500032, Phone No. 040 - 67162222; Fax No. 040-23431551, Email: 
kmsmedisurgi.ipo@karvy.comweb www.karisma.karvy.com. 

 
7. Members/ Proxies are requested to bring the attendance slips duly filled in and copies of the 

Annual Report to the Meeting. The identity/signature of the members holding shares in 
electronic/demat form is liable for verification with specimen signatures as may be furnished by 
NSDL/CDSL to the Company. Such members are advised to bring relevant identity card, issued 
by the Depository Participant to attend the Annual General Meeting. 

 
 

8. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting are 
requested to send to the Company a certified true copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their 
representative along with their specimen signature to attend and vote on their behalf at the 
meeting. 
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9. In case of joint holder, only joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to 

vote. 
10. All the material documents referred to in the Resolutions are open for inspection at the 

Company’s Registered Office 297/301 May Building, Gr. Floor Marine lines (East) Princess 
Street Mumbai-400002 on all working days, except Sundays, between 10.00 A.M. to 1.00 
P.M. till September 30, 2023and will also be available for inspection at the Meeting.  

 
11. Shareholders can register their complaints, if any on cskms99@gmail.com. 

 
12. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the 

Company of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are 
also advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings 
should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified. 

 
13. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent 

Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in 
electronic form are therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participant(s) with 
whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can 
submit the PAN details to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents/Company. 

 
14. In compliance with Sections 108 and 110 of the Act and the rules made thereunder and the 

MCA Circulars, the Company has provided the facility to the shareholders to exercise their 
votes electronically and vote on the resolutions through the e-voting service facility arranged 
by Kfin Tech. The instructions for e-voting are provided as part of this AGM Notice. 
 

15. The voting rights for Equity Shares are one vote per Equity Share, registered in the name of 
the members. Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of Equity Shares 
registered in the name of the shareholders as on Saturday, September 23, 2023. A person who 
is not a shareholder on the relevant date should treat this notice for information purpose only. 

 

Shareholders desiring to exercise their vote through the e-voting process are requested to read 
the instructions in the Notes under the section “General information and instructions relating 
to e-voting” in this AGM Notice. Shareholders are requested to cast their vote through the e-
voting process commencing from Wednesday, September 27, 2023 at 09.00 am and 
concluding on Friday, September 29, 2023 at 05.00 pm to be eligible for being considered, 
failing which it will be strictly considered that no vote has been received from the 
shareholder. 

16. Electronic copy of the Notice of 25th Annual General Meeting and Annual Report for FY 
2022-23 being sent to all the members whose Email IDs are registered with the Company/ 
Depositories. Members may please note that the Notice of 25th Annual General Meeting and 
Annual Report for FY 2022-23 will also be available on the Company’s website at 
www.kmsgroup.inand on the website of KfinTech at https://evoting.kfintech.com. The 
physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company’s Registered 
Office in Mumbai for inspection during normal business hours on working days. 
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17. The Board vide its resolution passed on August 31, 2023 has appointed M/s. Naveen Karn & Co., 
Practising Company Secretary, as the scrutinizer to scrutinize both the remote e-voting as well as 
ballot voting during the AGM in a fair and transparent manner. 

 
18. The Scrutinizer will submit their report to the Chairman or to any other person as may be 

authorized by the Chairman, after the completion of scrutiny, and the result of the voting 
through the e-voting process will be announced by the Chairman or any other person duly 
authorized by the Chairman, within 48 hours of conclusion of Annual General Meeting and 
will also be displayed on the website of the Company www.kmsgroup.in.   

19. In terms of the requirements of the Secretarial Standards-2 on “General Meetings” issued by the 
Institute of the Company Secretaries of India and approved & notified by the Central 
Government, the Route Map of the venue of this AGM is placed below this Notice. 
 

General information and instructions relating to e-voting: 
 

i. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the Members are 
provided with the facility to cast their vote electronically, through the e-Voting services provided by 
KfinTech, on all the resolutions set forth in this Notice. The instructions for e-Voting are given herein 
below.  
 

ii. E-voting process has been enabled to all the individual demat account holders, by way of single login 
credential, through their demat accounts / websites of Depositories / DPs in order to increase the 
efficiency of the voting process.  
 

iii. Individual demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again 
with the e-Voting service provider (ESP) thereby not only facilitating seamless authentication but also 
ease and convenience of participating in e-Voting process. Shareholders are advised to update their 
mobile number and e-mail ID with their DPs to access e-Voting facility. 
 

iv. The remote e-Voting facility will be available during the following period: 
Commencement of e-voting: Wednesday, September 27, 2023 at 09.00 am  
End of e-voting: Friday, September 29, 2023 at 05.00 pm  
 

v. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid-up equity share capital 
of the Company as on the cut-off date. 
 

vi. Any person holding shares in physical form as of the cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and 
password by sending a request at evoting@Kfintech.com. However, if he / she is already registered 
with KfinTech for remote e-Voting then he /she can use his / her existing User ID and password for 
casting the vote.  
 

vii. In case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode as on the cut-off date may follow 
steps mentioned below under “Login method for remote e-Voting” (Step 1).  
 

viii. In case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in physical mode as of the cut-off date may 
follow steps mentioned below under “Login method for remote e-Voting” (Step 2). 

ix. The details of the process and manner for remote e-Voting are explained herein below:  
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Step 1:   Access to Depositories e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding shares in 
demat mode.  

Step 2:   Access to KFIN Tech e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical and 
               non-individual shareholders in demat mode.  
 

Details on Step 1 are mentioned below:  

I) Login method for remote e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 
 

Type of 
shareholders 

Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with NSDL 

1.  User already registered for IDeAS facility: 
I. Visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com 

II. Click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” under ‘IDeAS’ section.  
III. On the new page, enter User ID and Password. Post successful authentication, 

click on “Access to e-Voting”  
IV. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider and you will be re-

directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting the vote during the 
remote e-Voting period. 

 
2.  User not registered for IDeAS e-Services 

I. To register click on link : https://eservices.nsdl.com 
II. Select “Register Online for IDeAS” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 
III. Proceed with completing the required fields. 
IV. Follow steps given in points 1. 

 
3. Alternatively by directly accessing the e-Voting website of NSDL 

I. Open URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
II. Click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ 

section.  
III. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen 

digit demat account number held with NSDL), Password / OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen.  

IV. Post successful authentication, you will requested to select the name of the 
company and the e-Voting Service Provider name, i.e. KFintech.  

V. On successful selection, you will be redirected to KFintech e-Voting page for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.  

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with CDSL  

 

1. Existing user who have opted for Easi / Easiest 
I. Visit URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or  

URL: www.cdslindia.com 
II. Click on New System Myeasi 

III. Login with your registered user id and password.  
IV. The user will see the e-Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of ESP i.e. 

KFintech e-Voting portal. 
V. Click on e-Voting service provider name to cast your vote. 

 
2.  User not registered for Easi/Easiest 

I. Option to register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

II. Proceed with completing the required fields. 
III. Follow the steps given in point 1. 
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3. Alternatively, by directly accessing the e-Voting website of CDSL 

I. Visit URL: www.cdslindia.com 
II. Provide your demat Account Number and PAN No.  

III. System will authenticate user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the demat Account. 

IV. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective 
ESP, i.e KFIN Technologies where the e- Voting is in progress. 

Individual 
Shareholder login 
through their 
demat accounts / 
Website of 
Depository 
Participant 

I. You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
DP registered with NSDL /CDSL for e-Voting facility. 

II. Once logged-in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-
Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL / CDSL Depository site after 
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature.  

III. Click on options available against company name or e-Voting service provider – 
KfinTechand you will be redirected to e-Voting website of KfinTech for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period without any further authentication. 

 
 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID / Password are advised to use Forgot user ID and 
Forgot Password option available at respective websites.  
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

 
Login type Helpdesk details 
Securities held with 
NSDL  

Please contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at toll 
free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 

Securities held with 
CDSL  

Please contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 022- 23058738 or 022-23058542-43 

Details on Step 2 are mentioned below:  

II) Login method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual’s shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

 
(A) Members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/ Depository Participants (s), will 

receive an email from kFinTech which will include details of E-Voting Event Number (EVEN), 
USER ID and password. They will have to follow the following process:  

 
i. Launch internet browser by typing the URL: https://evoting.kfintech.com/ 
ii. Enter the login credentials (i.e. User ID and password). In case of physical folio, User ID will 

be EVEN (E-Voting Event Number) 7680, followed by folio number. In case of Demat 
account, User ID will be your DP ID and Client ID. However, if you are already registered 
with KFintech for e-voting, you can use your existing User ID and password for casting the 
vote.   

iii. After entering these details appropriately, click on “LOGIN”. 
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iv. You will now reach password change Menu wherein you are required to 
mandatorily change your password. The new password shall comprise of minimum 8 
characters with at least one upper case (A- Z), one lower case (a-z), one numeric value (0-9) 
and a special character (@,#,$, etc.,). The system will prompt you to change your password 
and update your contact details like mobile number, email ID etc. on first login. You may 
also enter a secret question and answer of your choice to retrieve your password in case you 
forget it. It is strongly recommended that you do not share your password with any other 
person and that you take utmost care to keep your password confidential.  

v. You need to login again with the new credentials.  
vi. On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the “EVSN” and click on “Submit”  
vii. On the voting page, enter the number of shares (which represents the number of votes) as on 

the Cut-off Date under “FOR/AGAINST” or alternatively, you may partially enter any 
number in “FOR” and partially “AGAINST” but the total number in “FOR/AGAINST” taken 
together shall not exceed your total shareholding as mentioned herein above. You may also 
choose the option ABSTAIN. If the Member does not indicate either “FOR” or “AGAINST” 
it will be treated as “ABSTAIN” and the shares held will not be counted under either head. 

viii. Members holding multiple folios/demat accounts shall choose the voting process separately 
for each folio/ demat accounts.  

ix. Voting has to be done for each item of the notice separately. In case you do not desire to cast 
your vote on any specific item, it will be treated as abstained.  

x. You may then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and click on “Submit”. 
xi. A confirmation box will be displayed. Click “OK” to confirm else “CANCEL” to modify. 

Once you have voted on the resolution (s), you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
During the voting period, Members can login any number of times till they have voted on the 
Resolution(s).  

xii. Corporate/Institutional Members (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are also required 
to send scanned certified true copy (PDF Format) of the Board Resolution/Authority Letter 
etc., authorizing its representative to cast its vote through remote e-voting, together with 
attested specimen signature(s) of the duly authorised representative(s), to the Scrutinizer at 
email ID csnaveenkarn@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@kfintech.com. The 
scanned image of the above-mentioned documents should be in the naming format 
“Corporate Name Even No.” 

 
(B) Members whose email IDs are not registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s), and 

consequently the AGM Notice and e-voting instructions cannot be serviced, will have to follow 
the following process:  
 

i. Alternatively, member may send an e-mail request at the email id einward.ris@kfintech.com 
along with scanned copy of the signed copy of the request letter providing the email address, 
mobile number, self-attested PAN copy and Client Master copy in case of electronic folio and 
copy of share certificate in case of physical folio for sending the, AGM Notice and the e-
voting instructions. 

ii. After receiving the e-voting instructions, please follow all steps above to cast your vote by 
electronic means.   
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Explanatory Statement in pursuance of section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 
2013: 

 
Item no. 4:  

 
 Pursuant to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings 
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, approval of Shareholder is required where any contract or 
arrangement entered with Related Party is exceeding limits as prescribed for transaction or 
transactions to be entered into either individually or taken together with the previous transactions 
during a financial year.  
 
The Transactions related to sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials entered/to be entered 
into individually or taken together with previous transactions during a FY 2023-24 exceeds 10% of 
the turnover of a company as per audited financial statements of FY 2022-23.  
 
The Provisions of Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 are not applicable to the Company being a SME Listed Company.  
 
Hence, the approval of the Members will be required for the same. It is therefore proposed to obtain 
the Members approval for the following arrangements/transactions/ contracts which may be entered 
into by the Company with its related parties from time to time:  

Name of Related 
Party  

Name of Relationship  Nature of 
Transaction  

Amount (in Rs.)*  

KMS 
Manufacturing 
Limited 

Related party as per 
Companies Act, 2013  

Sales of Goods and 
Service 

14,00,00,000 

*The ceiling on the amounts of the transactions specified as above would mean the transactions 
entered into and the remaining outstanding.  
 
The Audit Committee and Board have approved the aforesaid Related Party Transactions at their 
meetings held on August 31, 2023, and has recommended to the members for their approval.  
With respect to the above matter, the Shareholders/Members are requested to note following 
disclosures of Interest: 
 

 Sr. No. Name of the Related Party  Nature of Concern or Interest  
1 KMS Manufacturing 

Limited 
Mr. Siddharth Kanakia (Chairman and Managing 
Director),  
Mr. Gaurang Kanakia (Non Executive Non 
Independent Director),  
Ms. Monali Kanakia (Executive Director),  
Mr. Anand Kanalia (Chief Financial Officer) and Mr. 
Rohan Kanakia (Executive Director) 

 
Disclosure as per Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014: 
 
(a) name of the related party - KMS Manufacturing Limited  
 
(b) name of the director or key managerial personnel who is related, if any - Mr. Siddharth Kanakia 
(Chairman and Managing Director), Mr. Gaurang Kanakia (Non Executive Non Independent 
Director), Ms. Monali Kanakia (Executive Director), Mr. Anand Kanalia (Chief Financial Officer) 
and Mr. Rohan Kanakia (Executive Director) 
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(c) nature of relationship – Related Party as per Companies Act, 2013 
 
(d) nature, material terms, monetary value and particulars of the contract or arrangement – Sale of 
Purchase of Goods or Services for value exceeding 10% of the turnover of FY 2022-23 
 
(e) any other information relevant or important for the members to take a decision on the proposed 
resolution - None 
 
The Board recommends the resolution set out in Item No. 4 of the AGM Notice to the Members for 
their consideration and approval, by way of Ordinary Resolution. Except to the extent of shareholding 
of the Promoters / Directors their Relatives and Key Managerial Personnel in the above-mentioned 
related parties which is duly disclosed above, none of the other Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel/ 
their Relatives is, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the Ordinary 
Resolution set out at Item Nos. 4 respectively.   

 
Item No. 5 
 
The Members of the Company at its 24th Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2022 had 
appointed M/s. Dalal Doctor & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.: 120833W) 
as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of 24th Annual General 
Meeting till the conclusion of 29th Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
 
M/s. Dalal Doctor & Associates, Chartered Accountants have resigned from the position of Statutory 
Auditor of the Company, resulting into a casual vacancy in the office of Statutory Auditor of the 
Company wef August 22, 2023 as envisaged by Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The Board of Directors at its Meeting held on August 31, 2023, as per the recommendations of the 
Audit Committee and pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, has 
appointed M/s. H. H. Dedhia & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 148213W), 
to hold office as the Statutory Auditor of the Company till the conclusion of 25th Annual General 
Meeting and to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of M/s. Dalal Doctor & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants subject to the approval of Members at the 25th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company, at such remuneration plus applicable taxes, and out of pocket expenses, as may be 
determined and recommended by the Audit Committee in consultation with the Auditors and duly 
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. 
 
The Company has received consent letter and eligibility certificate from M/s. H. H. Dedhia, Chartered 
Accountants to act as Statutory Auditor of the Company in place of M/s. Dalal Doctor & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants along with confirmation that, their appointment, if made, would be within the 
limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives and in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the aforesaid Ordinary Resolution. 
 
The Board accordingly recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for 
approval of Members. 
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Item No. 6 
 
The Board of Directors at its Meeting held on August 31, 2023, as per the recommendation of the 
Audit Committee and pursuant to Section 139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other 
applicable provisions if any, recommended the appointment of M/s. H. H. Dedhia, Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 148213W), as Statutory Auditor of the Company to hold office 
for a period of five years, from the conclusion on 25th Annual General Meeting, till the conclusion of 
30th Annual General Meeting at such remuneration plus applicable taxes, and out of pocket expenses, 
as may be determined and recommended by the Audit Committee in consultation with the Auditors 
and duly approved by the Board of Director of the Company. 
 
The Company has received consent letter and eligibility certificate from M/s. H. H. Dedhia, Chartered 
Accountants to act as Statutory Auditor of the Company in place of M/s. Dalal Doctor & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants along with a confirmation that, their appointment, if made, would be within 
the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Disclosure pursuant to Regulation 36(5) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as a part of the explanatory statement to the notice: 
 
After evaluating and considering various factors such as industry experience, competency of the audit 
team, efficiency in conduct of audit, independence, etc., the Board of Directors of the Company 
(‘Board’) has, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, proposed the appointment of 
M/s. H. H. Dedhia, Chartered Accountants , as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, from the 
conclusion of 25thAGM till the conclusion of the 30thAGM, at a remuneration as may be mutually 
agreed between the Board and the Statutory Auditors. 
M/s. H. H. Dedhia, Chartered Accountants have consented to their appointment and confirmed that 
their appointment if made, would be in accordance with Section 139 read with Section 141 of the Act. 
 
Brief Profile of New Auditor: 
 
M/s. H.H. Dedhia & Associates is a Mumbai based firm specialises in Audit, Assurance, Financial 
Engineering and Valuation and has a good professional standing among Corporate and MSME 
business. They are the auditors of companies listed on small board as well as many public unlisted 
entities. It consists a dynamic team who focus on quality, solutions and client first approach.  
 
The proposed fees payable to M/s. H.H. Dedhia & Associates will be Rs. 80,000 p.a. There is no 
material change in the fees payable to the proposed Auditor from that paid to the outgoing auditor. 
The Board, in consultation with the Audit Committee shall approve revisions in the remuneration of 
the Statutory Auditors for the remaining part of the tenure. 
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives and in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the aforesaid Ordinary Resolution. 
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The Board accordingly recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice for 
approval of Members. 
 
 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For KMS Medisurgi Limited 

 
Sunny Gupta 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
Membership  no. ACS 42843 

Date: 31.08.2023 
Place: Mumbai 
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Brief profile and other details, in compliance with the Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, as amended and secretarial 
standard issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India, are as under: 
 
Name of the Director 
(DIN) 

Rohan Devang Kanakia 
(DIN No. 09220915) 

Brief Resume, Experience and Expertise in 
specific functional areas 

Rohan Kanakia completed his undergraduate 
studies from O.P. Jindal Global University 
with a Bachelor of Business Administration. 
Worked as a marketing intern at JR Laddha 
Financial Services with the social media team. 
Consequently, he started out as an operations 
and supply chain coordinator at KMS 
Manufacturing Company which is primarily in 
the medical devices sector. Rohan has also 
represented the company at a medical 
conference in Dubai in 2020. With already a 
few years of work experience behind him, he is 
a highly motivated individual with a strong 
work ethic and enthusiasm to learn. 

Date of Birth 17th November 1998 

Terms and conditions of appointment/ re-
appointment including remuneration 

- 

Details of remuneration last drawn - 

Date on which first appointed on the Board 29.06.2021 

Details of shareholding in the Company directly 
or on beneficial basis 

Nil 

Relationship with other Directors, Manager and 
Key Managerial Personnel (if any) 

- 

Number of Board meetings attended during the 
year 

5 

Board memberships of other Companies Nil 

Chairperson/Member of the Committee of the 
Board of Directors of Company 

Nil 

Chairperson/Member of the Committee of the 
Board of Directors of other Companies 

Nil 

Name of Listed Companies from which resigned 
during last Three (3) years 

Nil 
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 Route Map for AGM venue 
 
297/301, May Building, Ground Floor, Princess Street, Marine Lines- (East), Mumbai- 400002 
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ATTENDANCE SLIP 

 
KMS MEDISURGI LIMITED 

297/301 May Building, Gr. Floor Marine lines(East) Princess Street Mumbai-400002 
CIN: L51397MH1999PLC1191189 

Ph-022-66107700/22,022-67498822,  
Facsimile: +91-22-22061111,  
Website: -www.kmsgroup.in,  
E-mail Id:-info@kmsgroup.in 

 
I hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Saturday, 
September 30, 2023 at 3.00 p.m. at its Registered Office situated at 297/301 May Building, Gr. Floor 
Marine lines(East) Princess Street Mumbai-400002. 
 
Full name of the Shareholder (in block letters) 
............................................................................................. 
 
Ledger Folio No. ..................................... DP ID ......................................... Client 
ID...................................... 
 
Number of Shares held........................................................................ 
 
Full name of Proxy (in block letters) 
.............................................................................................................. 
 
Signature of Shareholder or Proxy attending 
 
Please provide full name of the 1st Joint Holder 
........................................................................................... 
 
Notes:  (1) Members/Proxy holders are requested to produce the attendance slip duly signed for 

admission to the Meeting hall. 
(2) Members are requested to bring their copy of Notice for reference at the Meeting. 
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Form No. MGT-11 

 
Proxy form 

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
KMS MEDISURGI LIMITED 

297/301 May Building, Gr. Floor Marine lines(East) Princess Street Mumbai-400002 
CIN: L51397MH1999PLC1191189 

Ph-022-66107700/22,022-67498822,  
Facsimile: +91-22-22061111,  
Website: -www.kmsgroup.in,  
E-mail Id:-info@kmsgroup.in 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I/We, being the member (s) of …………. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint 
 
1. Name: ……………………... 
    Address: 
    E-mail Id: 
    Signature: …………………., or failing him  
 
2. Name: …………………….. 
    Address: 
    E-mail Id: 
    Signature: ………………..,  
 
3. Name: …………………….. 
    Address: 
    E-mail Id: 
    Signature: ……………….. 
 
As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual general 
meeting of the company, to be held on Saturday, September 30, 2023 at 3.00 p.m. at its Registered 
Office situated at 297/301 May Building, Gr. Floor Marine lines (East) Princess Street Mumbai-
400002 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 
 
Resolution No. 
 
1. Adoption of Financial Statement 
2. Declaration of Dividend 
3. Re- appointment of Mr. Rohan Devang Kanakia (DIN: 09220915) as a Director liable to retire by 

rotation 
4. To Ratify/Approve the Related Party Transaction of the Company for FY 2023-24 
5. To appoint Statutory Auditor to fill Casual Vacancy 
6. To Appoint Statutory Auditor for the period of five years. 

 
 

Name of the member (s): 
Registered address:  
E-mail Id:  
Folio No/ Client Id: DP ID: 
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Signed this ….. day of…… 2023 
 
 
Signature of Shareholder 
 
Signature of Proxy holder(s) 
 
Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 
Meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Please 

affix Re. 
1/- revenue 
stamp and 
sign across 
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DIRECTORS REPORT 

 
Dear Members,  
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 25th Annual Report on the business and operations of 
the Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 
2023. 
 
1. Financial Summary and Highlights:     

The Company’s financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2023: 
(Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars 
Year ended 31st 
March, 2023 
 

Year ended 31st 
March, 2022 

Revenue 1,102.73 1,031.69 
Other Income 1.54 5.12 
Total Revenue 1,104.26 1,036.81 
Less: Total Expenses 1,038.41 1,008.30 
Profit Before Tax (PBT)  65.85 28.51 
Less: Provision for tax - - 
Current Tax 19.00 7.00 
Deferred Tax (11.32) - 

Prior year Tax Adjustment 0.88 - 

Profit After Tax (PAT) 57.29 21.51 
 
2. State of company’s affairs & performance: 

Your Company has seen increase in turnover during the year under review which accounted for 
Rs. 1,102.73 Lakhs as compared to Rs.1,031.69 Lakhs in FY 2021-22. The Company has 
incurred Net Profit of Rs. 57.29 Lakhs as compared to Net Profit of Rs. 21.51 Lakhs in FY 2021-
22. Your Company is very much optimistic about the coming year. Since the Company is trying 
to reduce cost and expand its business, your directors are hopeful that the results will be more 
encouraging in near future. 
 

3. Future prospects 

Company is planning to expand the business by introducing new product range of adhesive tapes 
for automotive and Electrical application. 
 
Company is optimistic that this new product range will help company to increase the sales and 
profits in future 
 
Opportunity and Future Prospects: 
 
India is among the top-20 markets for the medical adhesives & Tapes in the world and the 4th 
largest market for medical devices in Asia. The market for automotive and Electrical industry is 
huge in India. The domestic industry has a huge potential to ramp up indigenous manufacturing 
and invest in R &D and reduce dependence on imports. 
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Our Strengths: 
Your Company has a strong, committed and dedicated workforce, which is a key to its sustained 
success. The Company believes that motivation, sense of ownership and satisfaction of its people 
are the most important drivers for its continued growth. Good governance practices combined 
with strong leadership has been the inherent strength of the Company. On the manufacturing 
front, we continue to build our capabilities and strengthen our processes. Through our robust 
efforts in implementing important initiatives in Quality and Compliance, we now see consistent 
positive outcomes from regulatory inspections. Our audit programs and effective internal 
controls ensure our compliance of all existing rules and regulations. 
 
Competition: 
The medical device industry is undergoing some major transformation with the latest 
technological advancements and the continuous influx of manufacturers entering the market. One 
of the biggest industries in healthcare, the medical device industry thrives on innovation and 
technology but currently witnesses strong competition in the market. 

 
4. Dividend: 

The Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of Rs. 0.05 (0.5%) per Equity Share for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2023, for approval of the members.  

 
5. Transfer To Reserve: 

The Company has transferred Rs. 57.29 Lakhs to Reserve & Surplus and the same is in 
compliance with the applicable provisions prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

6. Share capital: 
As on March 31, 2023, the authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 3,50,00,000/- (Rupees 
Three Crore Fifty Lakhs) divided into 35,00,000 (Thirty-Five Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- 
(Rupees Ten Only) each.  

 
As at March 31, 2023, the paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company stood at Paid- up Share 
Capital is Rs. 3,30,00,000/- (Rupees Three Crore Thirty Lakhs) divided into 33,00,000 (Thirty-
Three Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each.  

 
7. Compliance With The Accounting Standards: 

The Company prepares its accounts and other financial statements in accordance with the 
relevant accounting principles and also complies with the accounting standards issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 

8. Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and associate Companies: 
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company. 
 

9. Transfer to unclaimed dividend to investor education and protection fund: 
The Company does not have any unclaimed or unpaid dividend as on 31st March, 2023. 
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10. Directors And Key Managerial Personnel: 
i) Retire by Rotation: 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act, and that of Articles of Association 
of the Company, Mr. Rohan Devang Kanakia (DIN: 09220915),Director of the Company retires 
by rotation at this Annual General Meeting of the Company and being eligible, offers himself for 
reappointment. 

 
ii) Change in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel’s: 

Mr. Sunny Gupta was appointed as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company 
w.e.f. August 05, 2022. 

iii) Composition of Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel’s: 
As on March 31, 2023, your Company’s Board of Directors comprises of the following 
Directors: 

 
Name of the Director Director 

Identification 
Number (DIN) 

Category  

Mrs. Rekha Devang Kanakia* 00346198 Chairman and Managing 
Director 

Mr. Siddharth Gaurang Kanakia** 07595098 Non-Executive Non- 
Independent Director 

Mr. Rohan Devang Kanakia*** 09220915  Non-Executive Director 
Mr. Hardik Rajnikant Bhatt 07566870 Independent Director 
Mr. Kamlesh Rajani Chunilal 07588417 Independent Director 
Mr. Pratik Pravin Tarpara 08689556 Independent Director 

* Resigned as Chairman and Managing Director wef May 03, 2023 
** Appointed as Chairman and Managing Directors wef May 29, 2023  
*** Re-designated as Executive Director wef May 03, 2023 
 
As on March 31, 2023, your Company’s Key Managerial Personnel are as follows: 

Name of KMP Designation  
Mr. Anand Prataprai Kanakia Chief Financial Officer 
Mr. Sunny Gupta* Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

*Appointed as Company Secretary &Compliance Officer wef August 05, 2022  
 

iv) Board Evaluation: 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a structured questionnaire was prepared after taking 
into consideration the various aspects of the Board’s functioning, composition of the Board and 
its Committees, culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and 
governance. 

 
The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was completed. The performance 
evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the 
Independent Directors. The Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation 
process. 
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Meetings of the Board: 
During the year under review the Board of Directors have duly met 5 times to transact the 
business of the Company.   
1st- May 30, 2022 
2nd- August 05, 2022 
3rd- September 06, 2022 
4th - November 14, 2022 
5th- March 16, 2023 
*Mr. Siddharth Kanakia ceased to be Member of Audit Committee and Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee wef May 03, 2023 
 
 

The maximum time gap between any two consecutive meetings did not exceed one hundred and 
twenty days. The names, designation & categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance 
at respective Board Meetings held during the year and last Annual General Meeting and total 
number of Shares held by them in the Company are as under: 

 

Name of 
Directors 

Category No of 
Board 
meeting 
attended 

Last 
AGM 
attend
ed 

No of 
Directors
hip in 
other 
Compan
y 

Committee 
positions 

No of 
Shares as 
on 31st 
March 
2023 

Membe
r 

Chairma
n 

 

Mrs. Rekha 
Devang 
Kanakia 

Chairman and 
Managing 
Director 

 
5/5 

 
Yes 

 
1 

 
0 

 
0 

 
4,42,000 

Mr. Rohan 
Devang 
Kanakia 

Non-Executive 
Non- 
Independent 
Director 

 
5/5 

 
Yes 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
NIL 

Mr. 
Siddharth 
Gaurang 
Kanakia* 

Non-Executive 
Non- 
Independent 
Director 

 
5/5 

 
Yes 

 
2 

 
2 

 
0 

 
50,000 

Mr. Hardik 
Rajnikant 
Bhatt 

Independent 
Director 

 
5/5 

 
No 
 

 
0 

 
2 

 
1 

 
NIL 

Mr. 
Kamlesh 
Rajani 
Chunilal 

Independent 
Director 

 
5/5 

 
Yes 

 
0 

 
2 

 
1 

 
NIL 

Mr. Pratik 
Pravin 
Tarpara 

Independent 
Director 

5/5  Yes 0 0 0 NIL 
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v) Committees of the Board: 

At present, there are two (2) Committees of Board, i.e. Audit Committee and Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee. The Company is not mandated to form Stakeholders relationship 
Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The Composition and other details 
related to the Committees are as follows. 
 
Audit Committee 
The audit committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 177 of 
the companies Act, 2013. 

 
The terms of reference of the Audit committee are broadly as under: 

 
1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 

information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 
2. Recommend the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the 

Company; 
3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered; 
4. Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements and auditors’ report thereon 

before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to: 

 Matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be included in 
the board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Act. 

 Changes if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 

 Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 
management. 

 Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings 

 Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements 

 Disclosure of related party transactions 

 Qualifications/Modified opinion on draft audit report. 
5. Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the 

board for approval; 
6. Review and monitor the auditors’ independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit 

process; 
7. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions with related parties; 
8. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments. 
9. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 
10. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 
11. Reviewing with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of 

the internal control systems; 
12. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the 

internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, 
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit; 

13. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 
14. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters 

where there is suspected fraud or failure of internal control systems of a material change and 
reporting the same to board. 
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15. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the 
nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

16. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture 
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

17. Establish a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns in such 
manner as may be prescribed. 

18. To review the functioning of whistle blower mechanism. 
19. The audit committee may call for the comments of the auditors about internal control systems, 

the scope of audit, including the observations of the auditors and review of financial statement 
before their submission to the board and may also discuss any related issues with the internal 
and statutory auditors and the management of the Company. 

20. Appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and 
background, etc. of the candidate. 

21. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit 
committee; 

22. Oversee financial reporting controls and process for material subsidiaries; 
23. The Audit Committee invites executives, as it considers appropriate (particularly the head of 

the finance function), representatives of the statutory auditors and representatives of the 
internal auditors to be present at its meetings.  

24. Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company 
in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, 
whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments existing as on the date of 
coming into force of this provision. – Not Applicable 
 

The Composition of Audit Committee is as follows: 
 

Name Category No of meetings 
attended 

Mr. Kamlesh Chunilal Rajani Independent Director- Member 4/4 
Mr. Hardik Rajnikant Bhatt Independent Director- Chairman 4/4 
Mr. Siddharth Kanakia* Non-Independent Non-Executive 

Director-Member 
4/4 

*Mr. Siddharth Kanakia ceased to be Member wef May 03, 2023 
 
Four audit committee meetings were held during the year and the gap between two meetings did not 
exceed one hundred and twenty days. The dates on which the said meetings were held are as follows: 
May 30, 2022, September 09, 2022, November 14, 2022 and February 08, 2023. 
 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 
The Company had a Nomination and Remuneration Committee of directors. The Committee’s 
constitution and terms of reference is in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The Committee comprises of 3 (three) members of the Board, the details of the 
member are as follows: 
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Name Category No of meetings 
attended 

Mr. Kamlesh Chunilal Rajani Independent Director- Chairman 1/1 
Mr. Hardik Rajnikant Bhatt Independent Director- Member 1/1 
Mr. Siddharth Kanakia*  Non-Independent Non-Executive 

Director-Member 
1/1  

*Mr. Siddharth Kanakia ceased to be Member wef May 03, 2023 
 
During the year, under review, one meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held on 
5th August, 2022. 
 
Term of reference of the Committee, inter-alia, includes the following: 
 

 To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 
director and recommend to the Board a Policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel and other employees. 

 For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of 
such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an independent 
director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment as an independent director shall 
have the capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable 
candidates, the Committee may:  

a. use the services of an external agencies, if required;  
b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and  
c. consider the time commitments of the candidates. 

 To formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board 
of Directors. 

 To identify persons, who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior 
Management in accordance with the criteria laid down and to recommend to the Board of 
Directors their appointment and removal. 

 To carry out evaluation of Directors performance 

 To devise a Policy on Board Diversity. 

 To recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.  
 
Investor Complaints  
 
Details of Investor Complaints received and redressed during the Financial Year 2022-23 are as 
follows: 
 
Opening Balance Received during the 

Year 
Resolved during the 
Year 

Closing Balance 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 
 
No Complaints were outstanding as on 31st March 2023. 
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Declaration of Independence from Independent Directors: 
All Independent Directors of your Company have individually and severally given a declaration 
pursuant to Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 affirming compliance to the criteria of 
Independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the 
declaration(s) of Independent Directors, the Board of Directors recorded its opinion that all 
Independent Directors are independent of the Management and have fulfilled the conditions as 
specified in the Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder as well as applicable provisions of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015. 
 
During the year under review, the independent Directors met on 30th March, 2023 inter-alia to discuss: 

 

 Evaluation of performance of Non-Independent Directors. 
 Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the 

views of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors. 
 Evaluation of the quality, content and timeliness of flow of information between the 

management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably 
perform its duties. 

11. Directors’ Responsibility Statement: 
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors of your Company confirm 
that: 

 
a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 
 
b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of 
the company for that period; 

 
c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 
d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;  
 
e) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively and 
 
f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 
12. Change in the nature of business: 

During the period under review, there is no change in the nature of business of the Company. The 
Company continues to operate in the Manufacturing of Surgical Equipment’s. 
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13. Annual return: 

A copy of the annual return as provided under sub-section (3) of section 92 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), in the prescribed form, is hosted on the Company’s website and can be 
accessed at https://kmsgroup.in 
 

14. Particulars of contracts/ arrangements with related party: 
All related party transactions that were entered into by the Company during the financial year 
under review were on arms’ length basis and in the ordinary course of business. There are no 
material significant related party transactions entered into by the Company with its Promoters, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons, which may have a potential 
conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Details are annexed in Form AOC-2 
“Annexure-A”. The policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related 
party transactions as approved by the Board may be accessed on the Company’s website 
www.kmsgroup.in.  
 

15. Listing with Stock Exchanges 
The shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited. The Annual Listing fee payable to the 
said stock exchanges for the FY 2022-2023, has been duly paid. 

16. Statutory Auditors & Their Report: 
 
M/s. Dalal Doctor & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.: 120833W),are 
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 (Five) years, from the 
conclusion of 24th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 29th Annual General Meeting 
of the Company. The report of the M/s. Dalal Doctor & Associates, Chartered Accountants, on 
Financial Statements for the FY 2022-23 forms part of the Annual Report. The Statutory 
Auditors have given following qualified opinion in their Audit Report as on March 31, 2023: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Opinion explanations or comments 

1. As described in Notes 12 to the accounts, 
the Company has started maintaining 
certain stock records from mid of the year. 
The Company is in process of reconciling 
these stock records with books of accounts. 
The closing stock as on year end has been 
physically verified and valued by the 
management and accordingly accounted in 
the books of accounts. Shortage and excess 
if any will be accounted in the year in 
which discrepancies are identified. 
Accordingly, we are unable to comment on 
the movement of stock and value of closing 
stock of Rs. 91.97 Lakhs as on year end. 

The company is in the process of 
streamlining stock records. 
Many new types raw materials were 
added and due to the nature of stock it 
was difficult to segregate cost for every 
identifiable item of stock and hence the 
record for any excess shortage will be 
identified by the company as and when 
such discrepancies are evaluated by the 
management, but the stock value has 
been done properly as per rules and there 
has been no discrepancies about it. 

2. We draw attention to Note 32 to the 
Financial Statements, which describes that 
the Company is in process of getting an 
Internal Audit as required by Section 138 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Accounts), Rule 2014.  

Internal Audit report for FY 2022-23 has 
been received on 31-05-2023 
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17. Secretarial Audit Report: 

In terms of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made there under, Mr. Naveen Maheshwar Karn, 
Practicing Company Secretary was appointed Secretarial Auditors of the Company. The report of 
the Secretarial Auditors is enclosed as Annexure-B to this report.  
 
The Secretarial Auditors have given following remarks in their Secretarial Audit Report as on 
March 31, 2023: 
 

Sr. No. Opinion explanations or comments 
1.  Company has not complied with Rule 6 of 

Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014 wrt registration of 
Independent Directors under Independent 
Director's Databank. 

Company is in process of 
registration of Independent 
Directors under Independent 
Directors Databank 

 
 

18. Cost Auditor:  
Pursuant to section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Cost Records and 
Audit) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time your Company is not required to appoint Cost 
Auditor for the financial year 2022-23. 
 

19. Internal Auditor: 
The provision of Section 138 of The Companies Act, 2013 applicable to company and company 
has appointed M/s. V.M. Pandya & Co., Chartered Accountant, as an internal auditor of the 
Company, to carry out internal Audit for the financial year 2022-23 based on the 
recommendation of the Audit Committee. 
 

20. Risk management: 
Risk Management is a risk-based approach to manage an enterprise, identifying events that may 
affect the entity and manage risks to provide reasonable assurance regarding achievement of 
entity’s objective. The risk management process consists of risk identification, risk assessment, 
risk prioritization, risk treatment or mitigation, risk monitoring and documenting the new risks. 
The Company has laid a comprehensive Risk Assessment and Minimization Procedure, which is 
reviewed by the Audit committee and approved by the Board from time to time. These 
procedures are reviewed to ensure that executive management controls risk through means of a 
properly defined framework. In the opinion of your Board, none of the risks which have been 
identified may threaten the existence of the Company. 
 

21. Internal Control Systems And Their Adequacy: 
The Company has in place an adequate budgetary control system and internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements. No reportable material weaknesses were observed in the 
system during the previous fiscal. Further, the Company has laid down internal financial control 
policies and procedures which ensure accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and 
the same are adequate for safeguarding of its assets and for prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, commensurate with the size and nature of operations of the Company. The policies 
and procedures are also adequate for orderly and efficient conduct of business of the Company.  
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The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the adequacy and effectiveness 
of the internal control systems and suggests improvements to strengthen the same. The Company 
has a robust Management Information System, which is an integral part of the control 
mechanism. 
 
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, Statutory Auditors and the Business Heads are 
periodically apprised of the internal audit findings and corrective actions taken. Audit plays a key 
role in providing assurance to the Board of Directors. Significant audit observations and 
corrective actions taken by the management are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. 
To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the Chairman 
of the Audit Committee. 
 

22. Deposits: 
The Company has not accepted any deposit from the general public within the meaning of 
section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 
2014. 
 

23. Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments by the company under Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013: 
The company has not given any loans or guarantees or investments covered under the provisions 
of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the Financial Year 2022-23. 
 

24. Material changes affecting the financial position of the company: 
During the year ended March 31, 2023, there were no material changes and commitments 
affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred between the period ended March 
31, 2023 to which financial results relate and the date of the Report. 
 

25. Corporate social responsibility: 
Since the provisions as laid down in the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not 
applicable to the Company, hence no such Committee has been formed. However, Company had 
always tried in its best possible ways to involve itself in social development activities. 
 

26. Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts: 
There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts which would impact 
the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 
 

27. Management discussion and analysis: 
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report on the operations of the Company, as required 
under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is provided in 
a separate section and forms an integral part of this Report as Annexure-C. 
 

28. Corporate Governance: 
The Company is listed on SME Exchange, hence Corporate Governance Report is not applicable. 
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29. Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy: 
Pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 22 of the 
Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated Whistle Blower Policy for vigil mechanism of 
Directors and employees to report to the management about the unethical behaviour, fraud or 
violation of Company’s code of conduct. 
 
The Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism provides a channel to the employees to report 
to the management concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of 
the Codes of Conduct or policy and also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization 
of employees by giving them direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in 
exceptional cases. The Protected Disclosures, if any reported under this Policy will be 
appropriately and expeditiously investigated by the Chairman. 
 
The Policy covers malpractices and events which have taken place / suspected to have taken 
place, misuse or abuse of authority, fraud or suspected fraud, violation of Company rules, 
manipulations, negligence causing danger to public health and safety, misappropriation of 
monies, and other matters or activity on account of which the interest of the Company is affected 
and formally reported by whistle blowers concerning its employees. 
 
Your Company hereby affirms that no Director/ employee have been denied access to the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee and that no complaints were received during the year. The 
policy is available on the Company’s website: www.kmsgroup.in. 
 

30. Familiarization programs for independent directors: 
Pursuant to Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the familiarization program aims to provide Independent Directors with the 
industry scenario, the socio-economic environment in which the Company operates, the business 
model, the operational and financial performance of the Company, significant developments so 
as to enable them to take well informed decisions in a timely manner. The familiarization 
program also seeks to update the Directors on the roles, responsibilities, rights and duties under 
The Companies Act, 2013 and other statutes. The Chairman and Managing Director also has a 
one to one discussion with the newly appointed Director to familiarize him with the Company’s 
operations. Further, on an ongoing basis as a part of Agenda of Board / Committee Meetings, 
presentations are regularly made to the Independent Directors on various matters inter-alia 
covering the Company’s the detail of the familiarization program. 
 

31. Performance evaluation 
Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own 
performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of all the Committees of the 
Board. A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration inputs received 
from the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the 
composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of 
specific duties, obligations and governance. The performance evaluation of the Independent 
Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of the Non- 
Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The Directors expressed 
their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 
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32. Code Of Conduct: 
Regulation 17(5) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 requires listed Companies to lay down a 
Code of Conduct for its directors and senior management, incorporating duties of directors as 
laid down in the Companies Act, 2013. Your Company has adopted and laid down a code of 
conduct for all Board members and Senior Management of the company pursuant to Clause 49 of 
the erstwhile listing agreement. The code of conduct is available on the website of the company. 
All Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code 
of Conduct. A declaration to this effect signed by the Managing Director is given in this Annual 
Report. 
 

33. Reconciliation of share capital audit: 
As stipulated by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), Mr. Naveen Maheshwar Karn, 
Practicing Company Secretary carried out the Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit to reconcile 
the total admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. This audit is 
carried out every quarter and the report thereon is submitted to Stock Exchanges and is also 
placed before the Board of Directors. No discrepancies were noticed during these audits. 
 

34. Insider Trading 
The Company has adopted a ‘Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and Corporate 
Disclosure Practices’ in accordance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
1992, as amended. The policy lays down procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made 
while dealing with shares of the Company and cautioning them of the consequences of 
violations. Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive 
Information, is available on the Company’s website. 
 

35. Disclosure Of Material Transactions: 
Under regulation 26(5) of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, Senior Management has made 
periodical disclosures to the Board relating to all material financial and commercial transactions, 
where they had (or were deemed to have had) personal interest that might have been in potential 
conflict with the interest of the Company. None of the independent directors have any material 
pecuniary relationship or transactions with its Promoters, its Directors, its senior management or 
its subsidiaries which may affect their independence and have received a declaration from them 
to this effect. 
 

36. Particulars of employees: 
The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with rule 5 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees 
of the Company, will be provided upon request. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the reports 
and accounts are being sent to the members and others entitled thereto excluding the information 
on employees’ particulars which is available for inspection by the members at the Registered 
office of the company during business hours on working days of the company up to the date of 
ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any member is interested in inspecting the same, such 
member may write to the company secretary in advance.  
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No employee has received remuneration in excess of the limits set out in rules 
5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 during FY 2022-23. 

 
The statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197(12) of the Act and Rule 5 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (‘Rules’), is 
annexed as Annexure-D and forms an integral part of this Report. 

 
37. Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earning& outgo: 

Information on conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and 
outgo, as required to be disclosed under section 134[3][m] of the Act read with the Companies 
[Accounts] Rules, 2014, are provided in the Annexure E and forms part of this Report. 
 

38. Prevention of sexual harassment at workplace: 
The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a 
Policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the 
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rule made thereunder. During the year under review, there were no 
cases filed or reported pursuant to the provisions of the said Act. 
 

39. Secretarial standards: 
During the Financial Year 2022-23, the company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial 
Standards issued by the Institute of Companies of India with respect to Board and General 
meetings. 
 

40. Acknowledgement: 
Your Directors take this opportunity to express their grateful appreciation for the excellent 
assistance and co-operation received from all our Clients, Bankers, Business Associates and the 
Government and other regulatory authorities and thank all stakeholders for their valuable 
sustained support and encouragement towards the conduct of the proficient operation of the 
Company. Your Directors would like to place on record their gratitude to all the employees who 
have continued their support during the year. 

For and on behalf of the board of directors 
 
 

Siddharth Kanakia 
Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 07595098  
 
Date: 31.08.2023 
Place: Mumbai 
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                                             Annexure - A 

Form No. AOC-2 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain 
arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto: 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: 
a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: NA 
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: NA 
c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: NA 
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: NA 
e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: NA 
f) Date(s) of approval by the Board: NA 
g) Amount paid as advances, if any: NA 
h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first 

proviso to section 188: NA. 
 

2. Details of material* contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 
(*As defined under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
adopted by the Board of Directors in the Related Party Transactions Policy of the Company, “Material 
Related Party Transaction” means a transaction with a related party if the transaction/ transactions to 
be entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year, 
exceeds 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited Financial 
Statements of the Company.) 
 
Name of Related 
Party 

Nature of 
contracts 
/arrangements/ 
transaction 

Duration of 
the 
contracts/ 
arrangement 
nts/transaction 

Salient terms 
of the 
contracts or 
Arrangements 
or transaction 
including the 
value, if any 

Date of 
approval 
by the 
Board 

Amount 
paid 
As 
advance 
s, if any 

Mrs. 
RekhaDevangKanakia 

Payment of 
Remuneration 

FY 2022-23 9,75,000 May 03, 
2023 

- 

KMS Manufacturing 
Company 

Sale of Goods or 
Services 

FY 2022-23  9,54,82,373 May 03, 
2023 

- 

For and on behalf of the board of directors 
 

Siddharth Kanakia 
Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 07595098  
 

Date: 31.08.2023 
Place: Mumbai 
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Annexure-B  
Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023 

 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 

To,  
KMS Medisurgi Limited 
 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by KMS Medisurgi Limited (hereinafter called the company). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my Opinion thereon.  

Based on my verification of the KMS Medisurgi Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I 
hereby report that in, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 
31st March, 2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 according to the provisions 
of: 
 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 
 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed thereunder; 
 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
borrowings; 

 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): 
 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations,2011; 
 
 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015; 

 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit 
period) 
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(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee 
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during 
the audit period)  

 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 

Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit 
period)  

 
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;  
 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 
2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) and   

 
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations 2018; 

(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) 
 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to 
board and general meetings. 
 

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;  
 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except: 

a) Company has not complied with Rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014 wrt registration of Independent Directors under Independent 
Director's Databank. 

 
I further report that  
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the 
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with 
the provisions of the Act. 
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 
 
As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the 
Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded. All decisions at Board Meetings 
and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the respective 
meetings of the Board or Committee thereof. 
 
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with 
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. 
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I further report that during the audit period, there was no other event/action 
having major bearing on affairs of the Company. 
 
 
For Naveen Karn & Co. 
Practicing Company Secretary 
 
 
___________________ 
Naveen Karn 
C.P. No.: 22655 
Membership No.: 60273 
UDIN: A060273E000899091 
 
Place: Vasai 
Date: 31.08.2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This report is to be read with Annexure A which forms an integral part of this report. 
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Annexure A 

 
 
To,  
KMS Medisurgi Limited 
297/301 May Building, Gr. Floor, 
Marine lines(East) Princess Street, 
Mumbai-400002 
 
 My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.  
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the 
processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.  

 
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the company.  
 
4. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 
5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis. 

 
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor 

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
company.  

 
For Naveen Karn & Co. 
Practicing Company Secretary 
 
 
___________________ 
Naveen Karn 
C.P. No.: 22655 
Membership No.: 60273 
UDIN:  A060273E000899091  
 
Place: Vasai 
Date:  31.08.2023 
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Annexure - C 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
Healthcare Sector: A Snapshot 
 
The healthcare sector is among one of the most important and fastest growing sectors worldwide. Key 
growth drivers are demographic trends (population growth and ageing), medical progress and the 
resulting innovations, rising prosperity (especially in emerging markets), and improved access to 
medical products and services. In addition, there is a great need for new therapies for a steadily 
increasing number of diseases. Innovation in products, services and business models remains strong. 
 
Over $7.8 trillion is spent on healthcare globally. With the healthcare sector growing significantly 
faster than the overall global economy, these numbers will certainly be much bigger by the end of the 
decade. In the emerging markets, rising prosperity is further generating above-average growth. 
Moreover, there is still a great need for new and efficient drugs and therapies. 
 
Healthcare has become one of India’s largest sectors – both in terms of revenue and employment. 
Healthcare comprises of hospitals, medical devices, clinical trials, outsourcing, telemedicine, medical 
tourism, health insurance and medical equipment. Indian healthcare delivery system is categorized 
into two major components. 
 
1. Public 
2. Private 
 
The Government, i.e. public healthcare system comprises of limited secondary and tertiary care 
institutions in key cities and focuses on providing basic healthcare facilities in the form of primary 
healthcare centres (PHCs) in rural areas. 
 
The private sector provides majority of secondary, tertiary and quaternary care with a major 
concentration in metros, tier I and tier II cities. 
 
India is also cost competitive compared to its peers in Asia and Western countries. The cost of surgery 
in India is about one-tenth of that in the US or Western Europe. India ranks 145th among 195 
countries in terms of quality and accessibility of healthcare. 
 
Our business overview: 
 
Our Company was incorporated at Mumbai as "KMS Medisurgi Private Limited" on 25th March, 
1999. We have been converted in to a Public Limited Company and consequently name was changed 
to “KMS Medisurgi Limited" on 15th June, 2016. 
 
We manufacture & undertake job work of coating of various substrates like non-woven fabrics, PU 
films, cotton fabrics, and taffeta silk fabrics with adhesive. We are engaged into the business of 
ethical marketing and distribution of Surgical Disposable, Haemostat, Medical Devices, Urology 
Equipment’s, Surgery Equipment’s, Orthopedic/Physiotherapy Equipment’s, Blood Banking 
Equipment’s and other such Surgical Equipment’s in India. 
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We have been established in 1999 as surgical equipment company and since then we have been 
successfully launching new concepts through which have helped the Indian Healthcare industry. We 
bridge the gap between the world technological advancements and Indian Healthcare industry. We are 
government approved suppliers throughout India. 
 
Our Mission is “To become a leading Medical Device Company specializing in the supply of value-
added products contributing to public healthcare and focusing on leading surgical products with a 
technological edge, at competitive rates”. Our target is "To serve our customers at our very best, 
constantly improve and upgrade the quality of our production and organizational skills and to develop 
products.” To facilitate growth, our company has a well-established distribution and export system 
throughout the world. 
 
The Quality of our products has always been our priority, thanks to our highly qualified and dedicated 
staff, we have maintained those standards and we will strive towards excellence in future. We are 
Government approved supplier. We are representing the World Leaders in Surgical Disposables, 
Medical & Surgical Equipment’s for India as their Exclusive Distributors. We also undertake job 
work of coating of various substrates like non-woven fabrics, PU films, cotton fabrics, taffeta silk 
fabrics with adhesive. 
 
Our international presence:              

 Vietnam 
 Dubai 
 Europe 
 Australia 
 Cambodia 
 India 
 Africa 
 Philippines 
 Russia 
 Pakistan 
 Bangladesh 
 USA 

 
Growth Drivers for Indian Medical Industry: 
 
Having seen tremendous improvement since independence, healthcare in India is still a critical subject 
and we have a long way to attain universal healthcare beyond the country’s demographic, geographic 
and socio-economic diversity. Several targeted government initiatives have been able to achieve 
reduction in mortality rates and control widespread communicable diseases; however, burden of Non- 
Communicable Diseases (NCDs) is ever increasing. 
Public sector investment on healthcare in India is one of the lowest globally, accounting for only 30% 
of the total healthcare expenditure in the country. Out-of-pocket expenditure accounts for 62% of the 
total healthcare spending against a global average of 18%. Though only 27% of the Indian population 
is covered by health insurance at present, penetration of the health insurance has been increasing over 
the years. (Source:http://www.ficci.in/ sector-details.asp?sectorid=108). 
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The country needs to address the rural-urban divide in concentration of healthcare 
services, access to basic primary healthcare services, shortage of beds and skilled medical 
professionals, increasing burden of NCDs and quality concerns in healthcare, on priority. India is also 
witnessing the emergence of conscious, informed and tech-savvy healthcare consumers and 
consequently, the healthcare ecosystem needs to adapt to a patient-centric model to demonstrate 
greater sensitivity, understand patient expectations, engage with them and provide customized 
services. 
 

 
 

Wound Care Market In INDIA: 
 
Wound care is categorized into two types namely traditional wound care (TWC) and advanced wound 
care (AWC). Advanced wound care products (AWC) are designed for treating acute & chronic 
wounds. Chronic wounds take longer to heal and are expensive to treat. 
 
Modern wound care is emerging as a standard treatment option for chronic wounds. Traditional 
wound care products are being increasingly replaced with advanced wound care products due to their 
efficiency & effectiveness in healing. The advanced wound care market is segmented on the basis of 
product, application, end-user, and region to give an in-depth analysis. 
 
Trends influencing the Advanced Wound Care Market Size: 
 

 Significant increase in the prevalence of chronic diseases such as diabetes and obesity, 
increase in the geriatric population, technological advances, problems associated with 
conventional wound healing procedures, and a boom in the adoption of evidence-based 
chronic wound therapies drive the growth of the advanced wound care industry. 

 In addition, expanded education campaigns for advanced diagnosis & management of wound 
care, attempts to reduce the length of hospital stay to lower healthcare expenses, and 
increased propensity toward wound care products that improve clinical outcomes are other 
factors that contribute to market growth 

 The geriatric population is growing at a significant rate, globally. There is a direct correlation 
between aging and wound healing process — with age, decreased cellular activity reduces the 
natural ability of the body to close and repair wounds. Hence this raise in geriatric population 
is invariable impacting the market growth of the Advanced wound care market. 
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Covid-19 and Indian Wound care Market: 
 
The spread of COVID-19 rapidly developed into a pandemic, causing serious disruptions to health 
services, including the care of wounded patients. Due to the need, the delivery of wound care, which 
should be considered an important medical service, has changed. The main objectives of wound care 
during this time were to prevent major wound complications to reduce hospitalization and surgery, 
where possible, rather than eliminate wound healing. Before the pandemic, wound care aims to heal 
patients' wounds with a combination of smart antibiotics, adequate dressing, and proper loading. As 
this requires regular visits to the hospital, management's focus has shifted to focus on preventing the 
development of ulcer problems and hospitalization during COVID-19 times in India according to the 
article published by Avica Atri, Christian Medical College & Hospital, Vellore, Tamil Nadu India, in 
2020. 
 
Recently, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the number of operations cancelled in India is estimated at 
48,728 per week or about 585,000 over 12 weeks, as per a 2020 report published in the British Journal 
of Surgery. They include elective surgeries, such as bariatric, for severe obesity, and metabolic, for 
type-2 diabetes. Therefore, these number of surgeries are yet to be performed and after the outbreak of 
COVID-19, which is expected to boost the market in India. 
 
Competitive landscape: 
 
India is a developing country. As result, there is an 
increasing demand for wound care management 
devices. This has, in turn, helped in the growth of 
the wound care management devices market. This 
has made the market more lucrative. This will 
encourage the global players to make their presence 
felt in India. Some of the major players in the 
country are 3M, Coloplast, Medtronic, and some 
local players like Centaur Pharma, Axiobioslutions. 
 
Risks Management Framework 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of 
the Company’s Risk Management framework. The Board of Directors have adopted a Risk 
Management Policy framed by the Company, which identifies the risk and lays down the risk 
minimization procedures. The Management reviews the Risk management policies and systems on a 
regular basis to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities, and the same is 
reported to the Board of Directors periodically.  
 
Further, the Company, in order to deal with the future risks, has in place various methods / processes 
which have been imbibed in its organizational structure and proper internal controls are in place to 
keep a check on lapses, and the same has been modified in accordance with the regular requirements. 
 
 
The Company has robust risk management procedures to identify and evaluate risks on an ongoing 
basis. Risks are inherent in business activities and to effectively and efficiently mitigate risks, the 
Company has implemented a framework: - 
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 Strategic Risks 

 Compliance Risks 
 Operational Risks 

 Reporting obligations and Environment, Health and Safety Risks  

 IT Governance & Enterprise Risk Management 

 Management of Risks relating to Sensitive Information Leakage  

 Business Continuity and disaster recovery 
The identified risks are integrated into the business plan and detailed action plan is laid out to to 
mitigate the identified business risks and concerns. 
 
Internal Control System & Adequacy 
 
The Company is conscious of the importance of the internal processes and controls. The Company has 
a robust business planning & review mechanism and has adequate internal control systems 
commensurate with the nature of its business and size. These systems are regularly reviewed and 
improved upon. The Key Management has certified to the Board on matters relating to financial 
reporting and related disclosures, compliance with relevant statutes, Accounting Standards and 
adequacy of internal control systems. The Company has a detailed budgetary control system and 
actual performance is reviewed periodically and decisions are taken accordingly. 
 
Environment Health and Safety 
 
The Company is conscious of the importance of environmentally clean and safe operations. The 
Company’s policy requires conduct of operations in such a manner so as to ensure safety of all 
concerned, compliances of environmental regulations and preservation of natural resources. Safety 
awareness has been enhanced by way of training on hazard identification and risk assessment. 
Continuous trainings are provided to all employees. Mock drills on emergency preparedness are 
conducted regularly. 
 
Opportunity and Future Prospects: 
 
India is among the top-20 markets for the medical adhesives & Tapes in the world and the 4th largest 
market for medical devices in Asia. The domestic industry has a huge potential to ramp up indigenous 
manufacturing and invest in R&D and reduce dependence on imports. 
 
Our Strengths: 
 
Your Company has a strong, committed and dedicated workforce, which is a key to its sustained 
success. The Company believes that motivation, sense of ownership and satisfaction of its people are 
the most important drivers for its continued growth. Good governance practices combined with strong 
leadership has been the inherent strength of the Company. On the manufacturing front, we continue to 
build our capabilities and strengthen our processes. Through our robust efforts in implementing 
important initiatives in Quality and Compliance, we now see consistent positive outcomes from 
regulatory inspections. Our audit programs and effective internal controls ensure our compliance of 
all existing rules and regulations. 
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Competition: 
 
The medical device industry is undergoing some major transformation with the latest technological 
advancements and the continuous influx of manufacturers entering the market. One of the biggest 
industries in healthcare, the medical device industry thrives on innovation and technology but 
currently witnesses strong competition in the market. 
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Annexure-D 
APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL. 

 
1. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration for the 

financial year and such other details as prescribed is as given below: 

NAME RATIO 
Rekha Devang Kanakia (DIN: 00346198) 2.72 
Siddharth Gaurang Kanakia (DIN:07595098)  - 
Hardik Rajnikant Bhatt (DIN: 07566870)  - 
Kamlesh Chunilal Rajani (DIN: 07588417)  - 
Pratik Pravin Tarpara (DIN 08689556)  - 
Rohan Devang Kanakia (DIN: 09220915)  - 

For this purpose, sitting fees paid to the directors has not been considered as remuneration. 
 
2. The percentage decrease in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 

Executive Officer, Company Secretary if any, in the financial year: 
Name Designation % Decrease 
Rekha Devang Kanakia Managing Director NA 
Anand Prataprai Kanakia Chief Finance Officer NA 
Sunny Gupta Company Secretary NA 

3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 8.83%. 
4. The number of permanent employees in the Company as on 31st March, 2023: 19 
5. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: It is 

affirmed that the remuneration paid to Directors, 
6. Key Managerial Personnel and other senior management is as per the remuneration policy of the 

company. 
7. Disclosure under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014 
8. A)  Name of top ten employees in terms of remuneration – 

B) Name of every employee who - 
(i) if employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, 

in the aggregate, was not less than sixty lakh rupees one crore and two lakh rupees - None 
(ii) if employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that 

year, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than five lakh rupees per month  eight lakh 
and fifty thousand rupees per month – None 

(iii) if employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of 
remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the 
aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the managing director or whole-time director or 
manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than 
two percent of the equity shares of the company – None  

For and on behalf of the board of directors 
 

Siddharth Kanakia 
Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 07595098 
 
Date: 31.08.2023 
Place: Mumbai 
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Annexure-E 

 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNING& OUTGO: 
 
A .Conservation of Energy 
 
We strongly feel towards our responsibility and contribution to preserve our environment. 
 
The Company has considered sustainability as one of the strategic priority across all process. The 
company has been consciously making efforts year on year towards improving the energy 
performance. Energy efficiency improvement Initiatives have been implemented across all the Plants 
and Offices 
 
During the year, the Company has taken the following initiatives for conservation of energy: 
 

 Reduction of water consumption, recycling of waste water and rain water harvesting. 
 Turbo Ventilators installed in place of electric exhaust fans to reduce energy consumption. 
 Adoption of higher cavitation moulds to provide higher output enabling lower energy 

consumption. 
 Replacement of conventional lamps/lights with LED lamps/lights. 
 Voltage optimization and power factor improvements to reduce energy consumption. 
 Improving machine efficiency through continuous improvement in technology. 

Additional Investments and proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction of consumption of 
energy: 
 

 Installation of energy efficient Chillers to reduce energy consumption 
 Inefficient pumps replaced with new generation energy saving pumps. 
 Inefficient motors replaced with new generation energy saving motors. 
 Improving production efficiency through Standardization of process. 

The above measures helped in reduction of power, fuel, air and water consumption and made the 
company more sustainable. 
 
B. Technology Absorption Efforts made in technology absorption: 
 
Specific Area in which R&D carried out by the Company 
 

 Development of new design, processes and products based on customer/market requirements. 
 Development of new equipment’s for process improvement. 
 Carrying out ongoing research 
 Research work to reduce plastic consumption for manufacturing of medical devices and 

reduce cycle time of moulds to make the products more cost effective 
 Quality up-gradation of existing medical devices 
 Optimization of products and processes to minimize waste generation and reduce safety 

concerns Development of new analytical tools &methods 
 Import substitution and identification, testing and validation of new raw materials from 

indigenous suppliers. 
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Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D: 

 Constant up-gradation and adoption of new technology for better productivity, yield and 
quality 

 Reduction of cycle time in manufacturing process and material consumption 
 Achieving competitive prices and product quality 
 Improving Productivity and Process efficiencies 
 Significant quality improvement in existing products 
 Enhanced Global presence/visibility 
 Development and commercialization of new products. 

 
Technology Absorption, Adaption and Innovation Efforts in brief made towards technology 
absorption, adaption and innovation: 
The Company’s Research and Development division is continuously engaged in Research and 
Development of new & existing products and processes. The Company has also developed indigenous 
technologies and testing of products. It is the philosophy of the Company to continuously upgrade the 
technology and products in accordance with global standards. 
 
In case of imported technology (imported during the last 5 years reckoned from the beginning of the 
Financial Year), following information may be furnished: 

 
 
C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: 
The Company continues to keep its focus on widening of new geographical area to augment its 
exports. The Company is regularly participating in major overseas conferences and trade shows, 
which are helpful in improving the visibility of various products in international markets and 
widening its customer base. The Company does not have any foreign earnings. 
 

For and on behalf of the board of directors 
 
 

Siddharth Kanakia 
Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 07595098  
Date: 31.08.2023 
Place: Mumbai 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI  

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
 
To,  
The Members,  
KMS Medisurgi Limited, 
297/301 May Building, Gr. Floor, 
Marine lines(East) Princess Street, 
Mumbai-400002 
 
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 
Directors of KMS Medisurgi Limited having CIN: L51397MH1999PLC119118 and having registered 
office at 297/301 May Building, Gr. Floor, Marine lines(East) Princess Street, Mumbai-400002 
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of 
issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 
10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (as amended from time to time).  
 
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including 
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary 
and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the 
Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 
2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of company 
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other 
Statutory Authority. 
 
Sr. No Names of Director DIN Date of appointment in 

Company 
1 Mrs. Rekha Devang Kanakia 00346198 17/03/2016 
2 Mr. Hardik Rajnikant Bhatt 07566870 14/07/2016 
3 Mr. Kamlesh Chunilal Rajani 07588417 11/08/2016 
4 Mr. Siddharth Gaurang Kanakia 07595098 02/05/2018 
5 Mr. Pratik Pravin Tarpara 08689556 12/02/2020 
6 Mr. Rohan Devang Kanakia 09220915 29/06/2021 

 
Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs 
of the Company. 
 
For Naveen Karn& Co. 
Practicing Company Secretary 
____________ 
Naveen Karn 
C.P. No.: 22655 
Membership No.: 60273 
UDIN:  A060273E000899122  
 
Place: Vasai  
Date:  31.08.2023 
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DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD 
MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
 
To, 
The Members of KMS MEDISURGI LIMITED 
 
In accordance with Clause D of Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, I hereby confirm 
that, all the Directors and the Senior Management personnel including me, have affirmed compliance 
to their respective Codes of Conduct, as applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 
 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For KMS Medisurgi Limited 

 
 

      Siddharth Kanakia 
Managing Director 

DIN:07595098 
Date: 31.08.2023 
Place: Mumbai 
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MD/CFO CERTIFICATION 

 
To, 
The Board of Directors, 
KMS Medisurgi Limited 

 
We hereby certify the following as stipulated in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 that: 
 
1) We have reviewed Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 

31, 2023 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief :  
 

a. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading;  
 

b. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.  

 
2) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 

during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violate the Company’s Code of Conduct.  
 
3) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting 

and have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal controls systems of the Company pertaining to 
financial reporting and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in 
the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we 
have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

 
4) We further certify that:  
 

a. there have been no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the 
period under review;  
 

b. there have been no significant changes in accounting policies made during the period and that 
the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and  
 

c. there have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the 
involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the 
Company's Internal Control System over Financial Reporting.  
 

 
 
 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: 31.08.2023 

 
 

(Anand Kanakia) 
Chief Financial Officer 

 

 
 

(Siddharth Kanakia) 
Managing Director 

(DIN:07595098) 
 



ALAL
OCTOR
& Associates

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of KMS MEDISURGI LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of KMS MEDISURGI LIMITED ("the Company''), which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31 March, 2023, the statement of profit and loss, statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for
the possible effects of the matters described in the "basis of qualified opinion" section of our report, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in

lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2023, and its profit, and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As described in notes 12 to the accounts, the Company has started maintaining certain stock records for
material items from mid of the year. The C.ompany is in process of reconciling these stock records with
books of accounts. The closing stock as on year end has been physically verified and valued by the
management and accordingly accounted in the book of accounts. Shortage and excess if any will be

accounted in the year in which discrepancies are identified. Accordingly, we are unable to cornment on
the movement of stock and value of closing stock of Rs. 91.97 (in 'lacs) as on year end.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 32 to the financial statements, which describes that the Company is in process

of getting an internal audit as required by section 138 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Companies
(Accounts) Rule 2014.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section

143(10) of the Companies Act 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in

the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of Chartered

Accountants of lndia together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters exceptforthe matters described in

"Basis for Qualified Opinion" section. We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to
communicate in our report.
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Other !nformation

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the board report as per section 134 of the act, but does not include
the financial statements and our audito/s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or othenarise appears to be materially misstated.

lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act'') with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
a nd detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe
financial statement that give a true and fuir view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audat of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audito/s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with sAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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ldentify and assess the risks of rnaterial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 1a3(3Xi) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. lf
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our audito/s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our audito/s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Orde/), issued by the Central
Government of lndia, in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
'A' a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) ln our opinion, proper book of account as required by law other than inventory records as
mentioned in our basis of qualified opinion have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the book of account

d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, and rules made thereunder, as applicable.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March,
2023 f rom being a ppointed as a d irector in terms of Section LU (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure B". Our report expresses a modified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements.

g) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanation provided to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the
limit laid down under section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed
other details under section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor/s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. Though the dividend payment was delayed beyond 30 days, it was transferred to the
beneficiaries account and hence as explained to us, no amount is payable to lnvestor/s
Education Fund.

iv. a) The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as those disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of

t.
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For Dalal Doctor & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.

funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the lntermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

b) The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as those disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"),
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) Based on our audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

During the year, proposed dividend declared for the financial 2O2l-22 of Rs. 0.05 per share
was transferred to a separate bank account after 5 days and was paid to beneficiary
shareholders after expiry of 30 days. This is not in the compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account
using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is
applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under
Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial
year ended March 31, 2023.

\s
Ameet Chheda
Partner
M. No:112865

Mumbai,3Oh May2023
UDI N: 231128558GU8V15317
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our
report of even date to the Members of the Company)
i a A The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of fixed assets;

B The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets;
b As explained to us, property, plant and eguipment are physically verified by the Management

which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the fixed assets has been physically
verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed
on such verification.

c As explained to u1 the title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties
where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company.

d As explained to us, the Company has not revalued its Propefi, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

e No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the BenamiTransactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (a5 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder.

ii a As explained to us, the physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable
intervals by the management. However in view of improper inventory records as mentioned
in Note 13 of the financial statement, we are unable to comment on the coverage, procedure
of such verification, discrepancies during the physical verification.

b The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets;

iii a During the year the company has provided loans to staff however has not provided any
advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity,

A No loans or advances and guarantees or security has been granted to subsidiaries, joint
ventures a nd associates;

B During the year the Company has granted loan of Rs. 2.20 (in lacs) to staff and balance
outstanding at the balance sheet date amounted to Rs. 2.60 (in lacs).

b lnvestments made during the year are not prejudicial to the company's interesq Further
during the year no guarantees are provided or security given.

c ln respect of loans to staff the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts are regular.

d There are no amount overdue.
e There are no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the

year and has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the over dues of
existing loans given to the same parties.

f The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

iv As explained to us, ln respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the companies Act have been complied with.

v As explained to us, the Company has not accepted deposits or amounts which are deemed to
be deposits and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of lndia and the provisions
of sections 73 to 75 or any other relevant provisions of the &mpanies Act and the rules made
thereunder, are not applicable to the C-ompany

vi As explained to us, maintenance of cost records are not been specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of section 14g of the companies Act.

i a On the basis of documents produced before us, the Company is regular in depositing
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state insurance, income- tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. There are no
arrears ofoutstanding statutory dues as on the last day ofthe financial year concerned for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
As explained to us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.
As explained to us, there are no transactions not recorded in the books of account and have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
lncome Tax Act, 1951 (43 of 1961).
The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.
The company is not a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender;
During the year no additional term loans were accepted.
During the year, no funds were raised on short term basis.
The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.
As explained to us, the C-ompany has not raised any funds by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

As explained to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible)
during the year.

As explained to us, there has been no fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has
been noticed or reported during the year, accordingly clause xi(a) to (b) of the order is not
applicable.
The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence clause xii (a) to (c) is not applicable to the
Company
As explained to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of Companies Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
financial statements, etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards;
As explained to us, the Company is in process of getting an internal audit, accordingly we are
unable to comment on clause xiv(a) and xiv(b) of the order.
The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him.
The Company is not reguired to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia
Act, 1934 (2 of !9341, accordingly clause xvi of the report is not applicable to the Company.
The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding fina ncial year.
As explained to us, auditor appointed for the prior years has resigned. Considering the
communication with previous auditor and basis resignation letter received, we understand
there have been no issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors;
On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that
no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one yearfrom the balance sheet date;
Provisions of CSR contribution as mentioned section 135 of the said Act are not applicable to
the C.ompany. ;

txa

b

c

d

e

f

a

b

x

xi

xii

xiii

xiv

xv

xvi

xvii

xviii

xix

a

a

ZZ+LZ, T.V. Estate, S K Nrirc Marg, Worli, [,tum 40fi)30
Tel: +91-22-66625o15o.66627891,56627892 Fax : 9l-22-5652789OWeb: www.dalaldoctor.com

)o( a

57



ALAL
OCTOR

)o(

& Associates
Chartered Accountants

For Dalal Doctor & Associates

Chartered Accountants

The Company does not have subsidiary, or joint venture or associate company, where the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) report is applicable.

No.

Mumbai, 3Oh May 2023
UDI N: 231128558GU8V16317

Firm Registration

\M
Ameet Chheda
Partner
M. No:112865
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ANNEXURE "8" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORY REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirementd section of our
report of even date to the Members of the Company)

REPORT ON THE INTERNAT FINANCTAL COi{TROLS UNDER C|-AUSE (i) OF ST BSECTTON 3 OF SECTION 143
OF THE ACT

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KMS MEDISURGI LIMITED ("the
Company'') as of 31 March, 2O23 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the C,ompany
for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ('the lCAl"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of lnternal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the lCAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internalfinancial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
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maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

!nherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
orfraud may occurand not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financialcontrols
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

Based on limited audit procedure performed by us, during the course of our audit, the following material
weakness were identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial control over
financial reporting as on 31't March 2023.

a. As described in notes 13 to the accounts, the Company has started maintaining certain
stock records from mid of the year. The Company is in process of reconciling these stock
records with book of accounts. The closing stock as on year end has been physically
verified and valued by the management and accordingly accounted in the books of
accounts.

b. The Company is in process of getting an internal audit in as required by section 138 of the
Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rule 2014.

Material weakness is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal financial control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material mis-statement of the Company's
Annual or interim financial statement will not be prevented or detected on timely basis.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the nature,
timing and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the financial statements of the Company and these
material weaknesses have affected our opinion on the financial statement of the Company and we have
issued a qualified opinion on the financial statements.

For Dalal Doctor & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.

M
Amdet Chheda
Partner
M. No:112855

Mumbai,30th May2023
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Notes to Finenciel Stetements for the Yer ended 3lst March, 2023

I SIGNItr'ICA1YT ACCOI]NTING POLICIES :

I .l Basis of preparation end presentation of finaucial statements : The Financial Statements
of the conpany has been prepared in accordance wift tbe Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in India flndian GAAP) to corryly with tbe Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Ac! 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 201 4 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Ac! 201 3. The financial staements
have been prepared on accnral basis under historical cost convention

1.2 Use of Estimatea : The preparation of financial statcments in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires menagement to rnake estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at
fte date of the financial statemsnB and the results of operations during the reporting period
end. Although these estimates are based upon manrgement's best knowledge of current
events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

1.3 Inventories : lnventories consist of Raw Materials and Packing Materials, Work-In-Process,
Finished goods and Stores. Inveniories are valued at lower ofcost and net realizable value-
The cost is determined on First In First Out basis. The cost of work in process and finished
goods includes material and packing cos! proportion of labour and manufacturing overheads.

1.4 Cash Flow Statement : Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit
before tax is adjusted for the effects oftransactions ofa non- cash nature, any deferrals, or
accnrals of past or fufure operating cash receipts or paJmlents and items of income or
expenses associated with investing or financing flows. Accordingly, the Company's cash
flows from operating investing and financing activities are segrega.ted-

1.5 Cesh end cash equivelents: Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance sheet conprise cash
on hand, cheques on hand" balmce with barks, md short-term highly liquid investrrcnts with
an original maturity of three months or less and carry an insignifiganl risk of changes in
value.

1.6 Property Plent and Equipment :Property Plant and Equipment are stated at Cost less
accumulated depreciation and irnpairment provisions, if any. The cost cornprises acquisition
price (Net of Cenvat/Vat Credit whereever applicable) and any atkibutable cmt of bringing
the asset to its working conditions for its futended use , inclusive of financing cost till
commercial production.

Costs incurred subsequent to initial capitalizatioa are included in the assets' carrying amount
orly when it is probable that fuhre economic berefib will flow to the Coryany and can be
measured reliably.

The carrying arnount of the replaced part is derecogrised- However, the costs of regutar
servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss
as and when incurred.
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Notes to f inancial Stetements for the Year ended 3lst Marchr 2023

SIGNIFICANT ACCOT]NTING POLICIES :
When parts of an item of property, plant and equiprent have different useful [ives, they are
accounted for as separate components. Otherwise, these are added to and depreciated over the
useful life of the main asset.

1.7 Depreciation : Depreciation on Property Plant and Equiprrent is provided over the useful
life of the assets on written down value basis as specifred in Part C of Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 201 3. In case of Property Plant and Equipnrnt which are addcd/disposed off
during the year deprcciation is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of
addition/deletion-

1.8 Impalrment of Assets : The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date
if there is any indication of impairrncnt based on intsmaVextemal facton. An iryairment
loss is recognized vfrerever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. The recoverable arnount is the greater of the asset's net selling price and value in
use. In assessing the value in use, tre estinnted fuhrre cash flours are discormted to thsir
present vatue using a pre-tax discotmt rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and risks specific to the asset. Previously recogrized impairment loss is
firther provided or reversed depending on charges in circum.stances

1.9 Investments :Long term investments are carried at cost less provision, if any for other than
temporary diminution in the value of such investnents. Current investments are stated at
lower of cost and fair value.

l.l0 Revenue Recognition : Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefit will flow to the conpany and the revenue is reliably measured

Revenue from Sale of Goods is recogrrized when sigrrificant risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods are transferred to the customer and recorded net of returns, sales tax and other
levies.

l.1l Trensaction in tr'oreign Currency : Foreign exchange transactions are accounted at the
exchange rate prerrailing at the date of the transaction. Gains and llsses resulting from
settlement of such transaction and from the transaction of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign crtrrency are recogmize{ in the statement of Profit and t oss.

l.l2 Provision for Taxation : The ctrrrent charge for income taxes is calculated in accordance
with the relevant tax regulations applicable to the coryany. Deferred Tax Assets and
Liabilities are recopised on Future Tax consequences attributable to the timing diflerences
that result between the profits offered for Income Tax and Profit as per Financial Statement.
Deferred Tax assets and Liabilities are measured as per the tax rates/laws that have been

enacted by the balance sheet date.

During the year, the Coryany defemed tax asset on difference betweeir book
balance and tax
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Notes to Finencial Stetements for the Yeer ended 3lst Merch,202lil

I SIGNIFICANT ACCOTiNTING POLICIES :
l.l3 Employees Benefits : Defined Benefit Plan

i) Annual Contibution towards Gratuity Liability is funded with Life lnsurance Corporation of
India in accordance with the gratuity scherne and is absorbed in the accounts. The Company
does not retain any obligation to pay firrther amount if insurer does not pay all fufiye
employee benefits so the plan is not treated as defined benefit plan.

During the year, the Company accounted gatulty liability on the basis of actuarial valuation
conducted by the trust maintain ttre grahrity assets of the Corryany.

ii) No provision is nrade for encashrnent of un-availed leave payable on retirement of
eryloyees, as the leave accrued as on year end lapses.

1.14 Provisions and Contingencies:
A provision is recopised when the Corrpany has a present obligation as a result of past
events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
in respect of which a reliable estirnate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement
benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best
estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are
disclosed in the Notes. Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial staternents.

I'15 Earnings Per Sharq The basic eanings per share is coryuted by dividing the net profit
attributable to the equity shareholders by weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the reporting year. The numbr of equity shares used in corryuting diluted
earnings per share comprises the weighted average number of shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per share and also weighted avsrage number of equity shares which would
have been iszued on conversion of all dilutive potential shares. In coryuting dituted eamings
per share only potential equity shares that are dilutive are included.

l.16 Dividend: The final dividend on equity shares is recorded as a Hability on the date of
approval by the shareholders- Intcrim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of
declaration by the Corryany's Board of Directors. Accordingly, a corresponding arnount is
recopised directly in equity.
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For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-
Gaurang Kanakia
Director
DIN:00346180
Place: Mumbai

Sd/-
Siddharth Kanakia
Director
DIN:07595098
Place: Mumbai

Sd/-
Anand Kanakia
CFO
DIN:00285357
Place: Mumbai 

Sd/-
Sunny Gupta
Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer
Place: Mumbai
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Sd/-
Gaurang Kanakia
Director
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KMS MEDISURGI LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2O23

Amount in Rs. lacs

31st March, 2O23 31st March, 2022
Note:2
SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised No. of shares Rs. lacs No. of shares Rs. lacs

Equity shares of Rs 10 each

lssued, Subscribed & Paid-Up

Equity shares of Rs 10 each

Total

2.1 The details of Shareholders holding
more than 5% Shares

33.00 330.00

330,00

31st March, 2023

35.00 3s0.00 35.00 3s0.00

33.00 330.00

330.00

31st March, 2022

Name of the Shareholder No of Shares % Held No of Shares % Held
Moni Diamonds Ltd

Gaurang Kanakia

Anand Kanakia

Rekha Kanakia

Sushila Kanakia

Amrita Kanakia

6,34,(nO

3,28,180

3,37,400

4,42,W
4,40,000

1,68,000

19.2t%
9.94%

1o.22%

13.39%

73.33%

5.09%

6,340OO

3,28,180

3,37,400
4,42,W
4,40,000

1,5&om

19.21%

9.94%

70.22%

13.39%

13.33%

5.W%
23.49.580 71.L8%

2.2 The Reconciliation of the number of Share and amount of Share Capital

23.49.580 77.78%

Amount in Rs. lacs
Particulars No ofShares Amount Rs No ofShares Amount Rs

Equity Shares at the beginning of
the year

Add: Shares issued during the year

33,00,000 330.00 33,00,000 330.00

Eouitv Sha res at the End of the year 33,00,000 330.00 33.00.000 330.00

31st March 2022 31st March 2021
2,3 No of Non Resident Share Holders as on year end
2.4 Aggregate number of shares allotted as fully paid-up by way of

bonus shares in last 5 years

2.5 Each Equity Share is entitled to one voting right only
2.6 ln the event of liquidation,shareholders are entitled to receive assets remaining after remittance of prefrentials

dues.

2.7 Shares held by holding company or ultimate holding company
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2.8 The details of promoter's

shareholding:
Equity Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

Promoter name No of Shares % of total
shares

% Change during the
year

Gaurang Kanakia

(Previous Yeor)

Anand Kanakia

(Previous Yeor)

Moni Diamonds Limited
(Previous Yeo)

Sushila Prataprai Kanakia

(Previous Yeor)

Amrita Gaurang Kanakia

(Previous Yeo)
Rekha Devang Kanakia

(PreviousYeor)

Monali Gaurang Kanakia

(Previous Yeor)

Kaushali Gaurang Kanakia

(Previous Yeo)
Siddharth Gaurang Kanakia

(Previous Yeor)

3,28,180

3,28,180

3,37,4@

3,37,4N
6,34,000

6,34,000

4,40,W
4,40,frX)

1,68,0@

1,68,000

4,42,OOO

4,42,W
28,270
28,270

28,210
28,2LO

50,000

50,000

9.94%

9.94%

to.22%
LO.22%

79.21%

19.2t%

13.33%

13.33%

5.09%

5.09%

13.39%

13.39%

0.85%

0.85%

0-85%

0.85%

t.52%
1.52%

Amount in Rs. lacs

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Note:3
RESERVES & SURPLUS

Securities Premium

As Per last Balance Sheet

Surplus

As per last Balance Sheet

Add: Profit for the year

Less: Appropriation for the year - Dividend

188.06

148.82

57.29
(1.6s)

188.06

L27.30

21.52

2U.46 L48.82

392.52 336.88

Amount in Rs. lacs

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Note:4
Long-term borrowings
Secured / Unsecured

(a) Loans & advances from related parties

Terms and Conditions:

99.07 99.07

* All the above loans are interest free loans

99.07 99.O7
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KMS MEDISURGI UM]TED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Amount in Rs. lacs

3lstMarch, 31stMarch,2022
2023

Note:5

Trade Payables

Trade payables due for payrnent

Trade payables not-due for payment

Unbilled dues

113.28

13.s3

207.78

6.14

126.81 213.91

Particulars
(Irade Payable due for
payment)

(a) Undisputed due - MSME

(Previous Yeor)

(b) undisputed due - Others

(Prev'aus Yeor)

(c) Disputed dues -MSME
(Previous Yeor)

(d) Disputed dues Others

(Previous Yeor)

Outstanding fior following periods from due date of
paymem

Total notdue for
payment

Lessthan 1Y 7-2Y 2-3 Y
More than

3Y
4.24

s.56

56.61

202.72

0.03

0.28 4.52

5.66

1o8.76

20,2.12

4.52

6.08 46.04

Details relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises:

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately)
remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but be,yond the appointed day during the yearl but without
adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting
(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable wen in the succeeding

Irears, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section

5.66

Amount in Rs. lacs

31st March,

2023
31st March, 2O22

Note:6

Other Current Liabilities
(a) Advance from customers
(b) Other payables - Statutory

1.95

12.93

2.60

0.68
14.88 3.28

Amount in Rs. lacs

31st March, 31st March,2022
2023

Note:7
short-term provisions

(a) Provision for lncome Tax

*
,aa ,

Ac

*

0R&

8.90

8.90
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KMS MEDISURGI LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Amount in Rs. lacs

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Note:9
Non{urrent lnvestments

Non Trade lnvestments, Quoted
Other non-current investments (NSC) 0.15 0.16

0.16 0.16
Less: Provision in diminution in value of investments

Aggregate cost of quoted investments

Aggregate market value of quoted investments

Aggregate cost of unquoted investments

Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments

0.16 0.16

0.16 0.16

Amount in Rs. lacs

31st March, 2O23 31st March, 2022

Note: 10

Deferred Tax Asset / (Uabilities) (Netl

Deferred Tax Uability
Deferred Tax Assets

On difference between book balance and tax balance of fixed assets

Unpaid Statutory Liabilities

On difference between book balance and tax balance of fixed assets

9.67

1.6s

11.32

Amount in Rs. lacs

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Note: 11

Lonp-term loans and advances

Secured / unsecured, considered good / doubtful
(a) Taxes paid (net of provision for tax)

Less: Provision for doubtful loans & advances

+ Loans & advances due from directors / officers of the company / firms and private companies respectively in
which any director is a partner or a member

Amount in Rs. lacs
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

0.34

0.34

0.34

Note: 12

Other non-current assets

Secured / unsecured, considered good / doubtful
(a) Security Deposits

(b) Others - Fixed deposits with maturity of more than 12 months,

Less: Provision for doubtful loans & adrrances

4.46

1.28

9.36

7.14

5.74 10.49

5.74 10.49

* *

Ac

ORE

tEarmarked balances with banks against deposits with various 1.28 7.14
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KMS MEDISURGI LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Amount in Rs. lacs

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Note: 13

lnventories
(a) Raw materials 9t.97 95.60

91.97 96.60
Note: The Company is in process of reconciling these stock records with book of accounts. The closing stock as on year end has been
physically verified and valued by the management and accordingly accounted in the book of accounts. Shortage and excess if any will be

accounted in the year in which discrepancies are identified.

The Company sells goods as and when material is ready, and hence there is no stock of Finished goods.

Amount in Rs. lacs

31st March,2O23 31st March,2O22
Note: 14

Trade Receivables

Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful

Less: Provision

Disputed Trade receivables - considered good

Disputed Trade Receirables - considered doubtful

Less: Provision

Unbilled

* Debts due from directors / officers of the company / firms and private companies
respectively in which any director is a partner or a member

653.55 554.43

653.55 654.43

553.55 654.43

553.55 654.43

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment fl

Less than 6 M 6m - 1Y 1-2 y 2-3y More than 3 y
Total

(a) Undisputed Trade receivables

- considered good
(Previous yeor)

(b) Undisputed Trade
Receivables - considered

doubtful
(Previous yeor)

(c) Disputed Trade Receivables -
considered good

(previous yeor)

(d) Disputed Trade Receivables -
considered doubtful

(previous yeor)

518.31 123.74 8.13 3.36

3.36

653.55

654.4i445"41 165.66

Acc

t*

0R& 4,
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KMS MEDISURGI LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Amount in Rs. lacs

31st March, 2023 31st March,2022
Note: 15

Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Balances with banks

-ln Current accounts

{n Fixed Deposits

(b) Cash on hand

10.48

8.12

0.46

10.30

28.77

1.24

Earmarked balances with banks against letter of credit and against
deposits with various government authorities or government

Bank deposits with more than twelve months maturity

19.05 40.32

8.12 28.77

1.28 1.14

Amount in Rs. lacs

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Note: 15

Short-term loans and advances

Secured / unsecured, considered good / doubtful
(a) Gratuity asset

(b) Others loans & adyances
2.38

4.93 32.77

7.37 32.77
Less: Provision for doubtful loans & advances

+ Loans & adrances due from directors / officers of the company / firms and private
companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a member

7.37 32.77

Amount in Rs. lacs

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Note: 17

Other current assets

Other current assets

Less: Provision for doubtful loans & advances

* Loans & advances due from directors / officers of the company / firms and private
companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a member

0.69

0,69

0.59
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KMS MEDISURGILIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Amount in Rs. lacs

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Note:18
Revenue from Operations
Sale of products

- Surgical products including surgical tapes etc.
Sale of services

- Consultancy income

L,LOZ.4t

0.32

1,031.69

L,1o2.73 1,031.69

Amount in Rs. lacs

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Note:19
Other lncome

lnterest lncome

- from fixed deposits with bank

Other non-operating income (net of expenses directly
attributable to such income)

0.84

o.70

1.33

3.80

1.54 5.13

Amount in Rs. lacs

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Note: 20

Cost of materials consumed

Opening stock of raw material

Add: Purchases duringthe year

Less: Closing stock

95.60

786.73

91.97

66.67

809.10

96.60

79L.36 779.78

Amount in Rs. lacs

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Note: 21

Employee Benefit Expense

Salaries and Wages

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds

Staff Welfare Expenses

Directors' Remuneration

91.75

2.01

2.61

9.75

73.05

5.69

0.13

9.75
106.12 88.61

Amount in Rs. lacs
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Note: 22

Finance Costs

lnterest expense
0.02 0.15

0R&

o
* t

Ac

0.02 0.15
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KITils MEDISURGI UMITED

I'ldes to the ffnamial statemnts fur the year en& 31 Mardr 2023

t{ote; 23
Deor€cieum
On Prop€rty Plant and Equipment 31.75 29.13

31 75 29.13

Note: 24 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Ottrr Emenses

Power and fuel

Rent

RepaiB to buildin$
Repairs to milhinery
Repai6 to Oths
Rates and fdxes, exdudin& taxes on atrm€
A:dhFe
Seruice drarges
Equipment Hiring CharBs
Bank chargs
lnrurane Cturgc
DqEtim
lrgal & hofusional Cha.Bs
Job Wort Chargs
Commnicatbn Eeenses

Commission & Brolerage

Hivery,Handling & Transportdtim Charges

SE LisitinB Fees

PrinUnS & Statbrery
Miscellanou Erpenss
Surdry Balance Written Ctff/ Eack - (Net)

Truelli.E and Cfrwyance
Advertising & Sales Prornotis Epenses

10.20

109.16 111.23

10.63

o.21

2.t2
6.32

0.45

o.E
6-tA

2.77

0.96

1.79

5.31

73.75

L-67

33.40

0.25

o.23

9.70

1.97

8.64

L24

0.00

z.t6
7.81

1.28

0.25

2-52

3.75

1.35

3.srt

13.15

2-12

3.32

38.98

0.25

0.25

1i.37
o.22

6.71
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KMS MEDISURGILIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Amount in Rs. lacs

31st March, 2023 31st March,2022
Note: 25

Payment to Auditors
Payment to auditor

- as auditor
- for reimbursement of expenses

0.25

0.04

0.25

0.29 0.25

Amount in Rs. lacs

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Note: 26

Contineent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not orovided for)
Contingent liabilities

- Guarantees - Counter guarantee provided by bank on
behalf of company

Commitments
- Estimated amount of letter of credit issued by bank (USD

s4,2U.s7)

10.36

45.42

55.77

Amount in Rs. lacs

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Note: 27

Earnings & Exoenditure in Foreign Currencv

A. Earnings

Export of goods calculated on F.O.B. basis

B. Expenditures

Travelling Expenses

Purchase of goods

L.t4

3-20

394.94 380.71
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KMS MEDISURGI LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Amount in Rs. lacs

31st March,2023 31st March, 2022
Note: 28

CIF Value of lmoorts
Raw material 394.94 380.71

394.94 380.71

lmported Goods lndigenous Goods
Particulars Raw Materials Spare Component

Parts s

Raw Spare

Parts

Components Total
Materials

31st March 2023 394.94

50%

31st March 2022 467.31

61%
Note:29

Related party disclosure
(a). List of Related Parties and Relationships

Name of Related Party

Key Management Personnel

Ms. Rekha Kanakia

KMS Manufucturing Co. - Mr. Gaurang Kanakia

KMS Tours & Travel - Prop. Mr. Anand Kanakia

Mr. Siddharth Kanakia

Mr. Rohan Kanakia

Ms. Maryam Xhalil Bahanan (FY 21-22)

Mr. Sunny Gupta (( 22-231

390.q)

303.15

5C,5

39%

785.85

lW
770.46

1fi)%

Relation

Managing Director

Director

cFo
Director

Darector

Company Secretary

CompanySecretary

Other Related Parties (Where transactions have taken place during the year and previous year / balance outstanding)
Dermacare Surgicals Pvt Ltd Enterprise having Common Management

funount in Rs. lacs

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(b) Related ParW Transactions
(A) Transactions during the year:

Sale of Goods

KMS Manufacturing Co.

Dermacare Surgicals hrt Ltd

Purchases of Goods

Dermacare Surgicals fut Ltd

KMS Manufacturing Co.

Expenditure

Managing Directors Remuneration

Company Secretary Salary

(B) Balance outstanding at the end of year:

Trade Receivables

KMS Manufacturing Co.

Trade Payables

Dermacare Surgicals A^ Ltd

Unsecured Loans

Mr. Gaurang Kanakia

Mr. Anand Kanakia

797.77

7.72

8.82

52.v

9.75

t.o2

594.32

34.49

64.59

824.42

0.88

54.41

9.75

2.32

597.U

14.33

u.49
64.59
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TMSMEDISURO UM]rED
tlotes to the financial staterrents for the year enH 31 Mardt 2023
Note:31
Eaminrs Per Share

A (d Manarerial Personnd
Easic eaming pcr share has been alculated bry divlling profit for the year, attributaHe to the
equity share holders by the weighted average number of equity shares Ntstanding during the
year. The Company has not i$ued any potential equity shares and aEordingly the basic eaming
per share and the diluted eaming per $arc is sare- Eamirts per sh3re b computed as fdlm.

F.Y.22-21 F-Y-2t-22

weighted Awrage no of Shares (Rs.in lacs)

Eaming per Share (in Rs.)

57.29

33.m
7.71

2152
33.m
0.65

ilote: 32
Preivous year

Prwiffi year's fiSures haw been regrouped, reclassified and restated f,'here necessry to
corespond with the figurs of the current year-

Previous yeads figures have been audhed by a llm of chartaed ac@ntants other than Dalal
OGtd & Asseiates

Note:33
lnteml audit

Ihe Cornpany is in proces of getting an intemal adit as required by s€ctim l3g d dE
CompaniesAct 2013 read with Crmpani6 (Accounts) Ruh 2014.
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(MSMEDISURGI UMrrED
l{ots to the finamial staternents ftr thc Far sded 31 Mardt 2023

Amntio Rs hc
31st March,2023

Note:34
Emolowe Benefrt PlaB
The follflang table set out the status of the gEtuity plan as required under
AS 15 (Rflised):

Re€onciliatim of B€nefit Otligations and plan Ass€ts

CharEe in benellt obli&tion
ObliSation at the beginning of the year

lnterest cost

Current Seilice cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial (gain)/ lffi in obligatims
ObliBation at l€ar end

Change in Fair value of plan asseB

Fair value of plan asets at the b€ginning ofthe year
E)eEted retum m the dan asets
Contibutims by the emplorer
Benefits paid

Aduerial gain / (l6s) m plan aseG
Fair value of plan assets at year eod

Frpenses recognlzed in Profit & L6s Account
Current *ruice cost

lnttrest Cost

Eeected retum on plan asts
ilet actuarial (gain) / loss r6ognized during the year
Erpenses rffognized in Proht & Loss Aaount

Asst flrptbrs
Oiscoum Rate

Eeected Rate of Retum on Plan Asets
Salary Escalatim Rate

13.90

1_O1

2.01

{1.18)

15.73

L6.76

1.20

0.76

ra.rz

2.O1

1.O1

(1.201

(1.18)

o.61

Reonciliatbn or Pres€m Value ofth€ ooligation and the Fair yalu€ ofth€ plen a.s€6
Uability at year end 15.73
Fair value of plan asts at year end 1g.12
Funded Status 2-3E
Asset/(UabilM recognized in the Balance Sheet Z3A

7.75

5

Note: The conpany has adopted acturial yaluatio accounting for UE first time durire dE
year and hence companble fgurs are not milable.

r
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rMS MEDEURO UM|TED
tld6 to the flmrdal stabrEnts Sor the yrar qrhd 31 Mrrfi 2023

3ljtM.ch2(t23 31jtM8rdL2022
tl@::15
(11 nroo Ami6t5

A" GrreI|t Ratb
Cwent Asa
Curent [iCilid6
Curent ratio
lnsee / (Oeqce) ir 6tio
Reas fd lnsce / (Desce) - The dcse in omt ets b k$ tn propo.$on to r"ducti- h ordt lidilid6, hdc

B. Debt Equlty Ratb
LqEtm bffwing5
Shqt tm borryings
Total Oebt

99.O7

99.O7

n757
15(15!)

513t6

35r

82{-16
277.t9

379,t

99.07

99,07

Share cafital
Reres & Surplus

SlEchdds's Equity

OEbt Equity Ratio

lnqee / (De@e) ln rdio
Reas fq lECe/(DEnel - notapplhue

c. Mt S€.vir CG{E Ratio
kcfit alter taxs
Add: lntsgt

DeprEietiq &Aroti.atir
Eamirus milabh for 6t *wie

D. Rctw 6 cquity
Net p{ofit afts taE
Equity (As detrned in Debt Equity Raio)
Retum m equity Etio
llme/(Oe@elin ctlo
Reas fr lEea$ / (tleqee) - tXE to in@e in n€t profit th6e is iEee in the ratb,

E.lMttryTurffiRatb
cost d Goods sold

OpenanS stfik
Closing stock
AErag! lnEntory

lnmto.yTllMRatb
lnsee I (Dedee) in Etio
ReM fq lE€e / (Des@e) - rct Agt6bte

Rffinue frm Operati$s
TEde R6eiEbles (Eduding unbilH 'lHue)
Tra& RGiEble T@ffi r.tio (io drt6)
lndre / {Desee) in rdtio
Be.$ fq ln6re / (Deqee) - not apdiebt€

Nct Oedit PrrEhas
Trade Payabls

TEd€ Payables Turcrer Ratio (in days)
ll@e/(De@e)ln ratio
Rm fs lEee / (DeoE$| - IfE Ep.yrreht to trad! payau6 h6

330.m
392.52

310-m
33588

57.29 21.52

31.75 29_tt

665.88

1596

4r.06

o.02

50.4)

0.15

721.57

14X
€%

0.150.02

lntergt
Shon tm borcwings
Debt Scflke o-02

oebr Scruice Cwerage Ratio 5,136
lnoee / (De@e) in ratio 1172*
Rffi fdlEee/(Oe@el -Si@ttEc are iEi8hifi@t horuilr8s@de byqnpany, th@ isime inthe 6tio.

ol5

3/rc

9L_97 95.50
94-28

57.29

722-52

o08
,.4ax

2r-52
666.88

o.(B

7!t1.36

96.80

T19.18

&67

81.63

0.lo

1,702.7'
653.55

1,O31.69

65{a3

o-12

74X

1J9
x

1*.73
L26.81.

8r)_10
2rls1

1.58

3.786.20

6494

in the .atb
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Note to the ftmial st t!ruiB fqr th. ylar €rdcd 31 Mndr 2023
H. tactGdtaf tutEErSo
ftffiueftmOpe6tiru
Cumt Nets - Cumt Liablihs

t{et Carital tummr ratio

lnree/ (De@as) in ctio
Rem frlree/(OecEe) - mtapdi@dc

l. Net Prcfft Rado

Net Profit
Rrysue frm OpeEtiqs
Net P.ofit Rstio

Rm fo. lnoeu / (D6ree) - Du€ to in@ in nct D.qfit thdE is in@& in th. ntb.

l. Retum m €pltal amdolEd
Profft b€f@ fds
Add: lntecst
mt b€fore ioterest and tu6

Shan fk#crs funds
Add: Bo(wirSs
Iel Cafrtal EmCoycd

Retum m @!*talmdov€d
lh6ee / (Deme) in rdtio
Reas ffr loa@s/(DsEel - DrE toirc h net!rcfitth(E b itr@e iDOEntb-

Sane company ha3 no inEstm6t!, thir ratb is not $plicaue.

,.1O2.73

621.98

65.87

A73.TI

57.29

1,102.73

0.05

!t9a

6s_85

1,Gt1.@

60697

1.m

2t_57

1,031.59

o.02

28.52

8t{,07

777
1%

0.030.08

a7!t2

13396

8a/r.O7
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XITS MIDISURGI UMITID
Not6 to ttE fnamial statemnts for the yra. endrd 31 March 2023

ilde :16

t rdscbcad fprm
Ihe trp.tty hs rc udisdosld lmm during thc yeil. in th" tu ffinB ddetcd under thc tlm
Ta & ,!)51 (Prq,ioG YB. - NIL)

|'ot3:37
cnEtootllwqYrtul ar€N
TtE Cmpany dG rct deal in Cr)tto Curscy tr Vhual CU[qEy.

l{.te :18

RddGtin of .s€ts
The Cdnpily h6 not rsrdued lts Progerty, Plilt ild Eqiprmt.

ilota: An

Conpany h6 not fi@ any l@ns q ad@G to p.qiote.s, dkedqsr XIr,lPs ad the rdatrd prytiE (6 d€fi.t d t ds Corpai(5 AC
m13l during tha flnecial yeil 2(D2-2011.

Note: 40
gcmmi k@rtY
Th@ te rc ptEecdlrEs initiated / pcnditE agaanst thc cdrp.ny tq hold,E ily bami Foperty wlder th. Benai TmsactiN
(Prohi.Htlon) Ac! 1!188 !t5 of 19t8) and rule5 made thGndcr G at Madt 3! 2{t}! rtd Mrch 3r" 2(n2-

ilda;41
BqrwlE frw 8ak/Fl s dE sarity of Olrmt Assats
Ihe @mpany h6 not ohaired any ffiity agi*ror dE suity of mnt asts of th€ mpanv.

Nde:42
Wflft, OefadtE
lte Cmp.ny has rct been dclared o a wilful dehutts bl bankr fimcial iditutio^s GqErnrem d ey odEr lendcr, Mqffi,
lhe @(Fdry h4 not ilail€d aoyloilsfrm bilf+ fittmtil atctutirG, Gqcrntmt a ay othr lqdcr-

t{ot!: /t3

Relatboshlp with Stnf,t off ComEnl6
IfriiS fioaEiitl yer 2022-23 and finilid yen ZDl-22, rha Cqnpant fi iot ttr ay tr.rerirc with the onpa.rir= stuk cff
under stkm 2,l8of tiecompani6 A.t 2013 d *ction55oof CdrF tks Aat, 1S5.

l{ote a/3

Como[am wfth rombs dhffi of 6ml{6
Ihe Cqnpany is rEt thc holding Conpary. Hene dcbetre rqn iEEnts peniiri8 to Nuter ot lalEs lreshcd under dau* {84
of *ciio 2 c,f the Act read with Compilhs (Rcstrictio @ rurfie. of t ycrs) Rulci, 2017 aE not apdi@Ue,

Note;45
Comolare rilfi aqurd 5dr6E&l of ArE'GEnts
B{ing $e }ear no sdr@ d mrE@trts haE bea otered hto by the @mpdry,

t{d€: a5
t dliedo of 8qr6rd finds and sh6rc mlum:
l. Tlt mpily h6 not adared d loaed q irw.i€d fitrds (eitts tsrored frIds r dwe p.Eim 6 rry ds re r lird
of fir6) to ily other peM(s) q suty(i6), irduding fmtn Btiti5 (tntemcdinr6) ritfi ttE unffik* (*Ettw @ded in
vrldry d odH,i*) thd ttE lntelredi-y shdl:
(i) dirtrdy ot lndirectly lsd o inEt ln othd peffi q 6titi6 identified h any ron6 whaBrer by r o behaf of thc @npary
(Ultimate S6efi ciari6) r
(ii) p@Ue ily gwade, rurity q the lite to s o behalf dthe Ultimatc Ecnetrcides

ll. The mpany h6 not reiwd any fund fim any pelg{s} or entMies), induding fo.eign entitie (Funding Party) with the
undertrnding (whether rsqdd tn f,,rltirg tr othfli*) that the @pany shall
(i) dir(tly or ltrdlresdy lend d invest ih €the. pelsffi or stfi6 ldcnttH In any mnE whatsoer by d m behatf of the Funding
Party (Uhinate B.mftides) d
(ii) p@vide any SuaEnt?c, writy q the like ff b€hdl of ttrc lftirote Bencficixkx.

ilqte: /l7
Det ls d rmed duiterd

AnQrt in Rr. la6
PartkulaR

31-03-2023 31-{)3-2022

PYopG€d dividmd
ttuUend per share (in Rs)

llote 48
Ttrle &e& d knlmue Prmrtv nd hdd h Bm d the Coltw
Ihe tide deeds of imHe ptopc.ty re held in the llm d lhe thc mpany. Hrc dhe. dhdcrE rEqr*ffits aUEt
applioble

1.65

o_05

1.65

0.(E
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